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ABOUT THE COVER
 By balancing and integrating social 

responsibility, environmental stewardship and 

economic performance within its business 

strategy and culture, Sonoco is becoming more 

competitive and better prepared to meet the 

challenges of the future.

 The paper used to cover the 2006 Annual 

Report is .018” EcoTect® tan bending chip 

which is produced at Sonoco’s Hutchinson, 

Kan., mill. EcoTect chip is produced from 

100% recycled paper with a minimum of 80% 

post consumer content. The paper is primarily 

sold to manufacturers of folding cartons where 

a smooth, pliable surface is required.

INSIDE FRONT COVER
 Illustrations of Sonoco’s commitment to 

sustainability, through its diverse line of 

packaging include: (top) Some of the 

brightest young minds in the fi elds of 

science and math in South Carolina 

take part in a chemistry experiment 

at the Governor’s School for Science 

and Mathematics (GSSM) located 

in Hartsville, S.C. Sonoco’s 

continuing support of GSSM and 

other educational institutions and 

programs is fueling a better 

quality of life for citizens in 

Sonoco’s home state. (center) Sonoco’s forestry 

professionals exercise best practices in 

conservation and forestry management on the 

approximately 80,000 acres of woodlands 

owned or leased by Sonoco. These practices 

include utilizing 100% of the wood coming 

from logged trees to provide pulp fi ber used to 

produce linerboard. (bottom) Pam Horine, 

senior development engineer for Sonoco (left), 

confers with World Pac Paper’s Edgar Smith Jr., 

chief executive offi cer (bottom), Richard 

Baptiste, president and chief operating offi cer 

(center), and Glen Butler, executive vice 

president (top), over samples of towel and 

tissue cores at Sonoco’s Hartsville pilot plant. 

Sonoco teamed up with the Maryland-based 

minority-owned paper distributor to secure 

one of the Company’s largest external paper 

sales in 2006.

  Packaging used in the illustration 

includes: (top to bottom) a new high-

barrier foil fl exible package produced 

by Sonoco for the launch of Pringles® 

Select crisps; Sonoco’s new Dorpak® 

paperboard pails used for Preen® 

fertilizers; and Sonotube® concrete 

forms with RainGuard™ technology 

being used on construction sites 

throughout North America.

2006

Net income for 2006 was $195.1 million ($1.92 per 

diluted share), up 21%, compared with $161.9 

million ($1.61 per diluted share) for 2005. 

Net income in 2006 was negatively impacted by 

after-tax restructuring charges of $21.3 million, all 

of which relate to previously announced cost 

reduction and restructuring activities. Net income 

for 2005 was negatively affected by $10.1 million 

of additional tax expense associated with the 

repatriation of foreign earnings, a $7.6 million 

after-tax expense to increase an environmental 

reserve and $13 million of after-tax restructuring 

costs.

Base earnings per diluted share for 2006 were 

$216 million ($2.13 per diluted share), up 12.1%, 

compared with $192.6 million ($1.92 per diluted 

share) for 2005. Base earnings is a non-GAAP 

was a year of record performance for Sonoco, 

refl ecting the strength of our balanced portfolio 

of packaging products and services, solid capital 

structure and dedication to providing shareholder 

value. We achieved all-time high sales, net income, 

cash fl ow from operations, productivity improve-

ment and new product sales, while increasing 

dividends for the 24th consecutive year, effectively 

recovering raw material cost increases and other 

infl ationary costs, and further reducing working 

capital. Furthermore, we improved margins for 

the third consecutive year. And, most impor-

tantly, our shareholders enjoyed a 33.2% total 

return on their investment, which signifi cantly 

outpaced the Standard & Poor’s 500 Index and 

the Dow Jones Containers and Packaging Index.

Although pleased with our accomplishments in 

2006, we have signifi cant opportunities for 

improvement. We know that to sustain annual 

average double-digit total returns for shareholders, 

we must accelerate top-line growth, both organi-

cally and through acquisitions. We know that we 

must remain vigilant about margin improvement 

by further improving our position as the low-cost 

producer, whether through restructuring, consoli-

dation or process improvement. We must con-

tinue offsetting rising raw material and other 

operating costs through effective price manage-

ment. And, we must continue protecting our solid 

cash fl ow through focused day-to-day manage-

ment of manufacturing and purchasing produc-

tivity, working capital and the improvement of 

any underperforming operations.

SUMMARY OF 2006 RESULTS
Net sales for the full year 2006 were $3.7 billion, 

up 3.6%, compared with $3.5 billion for 2005. 

Sales increased in all the Company’s reporting 

segments, led principally by higher selling prices 

and favorable foreign currency translation.

�

 Harris E. DeLoach Jr., Chairman, President and Chief 
Executive Offi cer
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The following graph compares the cumulative five-year total return attained by shareholders on Sonoco Products 
Company’s common stock relative to the cumulative total returns of the S&P 500 Index and the Dow Jones U.S. 
Containers & Packaging Index (which includes the Company). An investment of $100 (with reinvestment of all 
dividends) is assumed to have been made in our common stock and in each of the indexes on 12/31/2001 and its 
relative performance is tracked through 12/31/2006.

 12/01 12/02 12/03 12/04 12/05 12/06

Sonoco Products Company 100.00 89.14 99.52 123.99 127.04 169.27
S&P 500 100.00 77.90 100.24 111.15 116.61 135.03
Dow Jones U.S. Containers & Packaging 100.00 107.59 128.11 153.28 152.31 170.72
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MANAGEMENT’S Discussion and Analysis 

of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

OVERVIEW
 2006 was a good year for both Sonoco and its share-
holders. Sonoco achieved records in sales, net income and 
cash fl ow from operations and the Company’s stock pro-
vided its shareholders with an annual total return of 33.2%. 
Sonoco’s target is to provide shareholders with a double-
digit average annual total return over time. To meet that 
target, the Company focuses on three major areas: driving 
profi table sales growth, improving margins, and leveraging 
the Company’s strong cash fl ow and fi nancial position. 
 Sales continued to grow in 2006 from new products 
and acquisitions, while the Company received a number of 
awards for packaging innovation. The Company recorded 
a third consecutive year of operating margin improvement 
driven by strong productivity gains and a continued focus 
on price management, cost reductions and the turnaround 
of underperforming operations. The Company’s initiative 
to reduce working capital and the operational improve-
ment helped boost cash fl ow to record levels. 
 The Company’s primary growth drivers are acquisitions, 
geographic expansion, providing total packaging solutions 
for customers and new product development. In 2006, 
sales grew 3.6% over 2005, primarily due to increased sell-
ing prices throughout the Company, the favorable impact 
of foreign exchange rates and an increase in volume.
 During 2006, the Consumer Packaging segment pro-
vided 45% of the total increase in revenue and Tubes 
and Cores/Paper provided 34%, while revenue in the 
Packaging Services segment was essentially unchanged. 
Businesses in All Other Sonoco provided the remaining 
21% of the total revenue increase. The Company expects 
that, over the next several years, growth in the consumer-
related portions of its business will outpace growth in the 
industrial-related portions. Higher volume accounted for 
21% of the revenue increase in Consumer Packaging, 40% 
in Tubes and Cores/Paper and 54% in All Other Sonoco. 
Volume increases in the Packaging Services segment were 
more than offset by the impact of the 2005 divestiture of a 
folding cartons plant.
 The acquisitions made in 2006 did not have a signifi -
cant impact on sales, as two of the larger ones did not 
close until late in the fourth quarter. However, these acqui-
sitions are expected to provide additional year-over-year 
sales in excess of $100 million in 2007. The purchase of 
the remaining 35.5% interest in the Sonoco-Alcore S.a.r.l. 
(Sonoco-Alcore) joint venture will not result in additional 
sales as it was previously consolidated in the Company’s 

results. A reduction in sales resulting from the December 
2005 sale of the folding cartons operation more than offset 
the positive impact of several smaller acquisitions made 
earlier in 2006. 
 The Company reported net income of $195.1 million 
for 2006, compared with $161.9 million for 2005. Earnings 
growth in 2006 resulted in large part from productivity 
improvements in virtually all of the Company’s businesses 
along with price increases that effectively offset increases 
in the costs of labor, material, freight and energy. Volume 
growth had less impact on operating profi ts than its effect 
on sales due to a change in the mix of products sold. The 
change in mix is primarily attributable to increased sales of 
tissue and towel board in the Tubes and Cores/Paper seg-
ment and composite cans to the powdered infant formula 
market in the Consumer Packaging segment. Both of these 
products have lower margins relative to other products. 
In addition, $10.1 million of increased sales volume in the 
Packaging Services segment were on a pass-through basis 
and therefore generated no signifi cant additional gross 
margin. 
 Operating margins, including both gross profi t margin 
and net income margin, showed improvement over 2005 
levels. Net income for 2006 included after-tax restructur-
ing charges of $20.9 million, $7.8 million more than the 
$13.1 million net restructuring charges recorded in 2005. 
Net income for 2005 was negatively impacted by an 
after-tax charge of $7.6 million related to an environmental 
reserve at a subsidiary’s paper operations in Wisconsin and 
additional tax expense of $10.1 million associated with the 
repatriation of foreign earnings. 
 Cash fl ow from operations reached a record 
$482.6 million in 2006. Cash fl ow was used to fund capital 
expenditures, make acquisitions, pay dividends, repur-
chase Company stock and make net payments on debt. 
To sustain strong cash fl ow, the Company emphasizes 
profi table growth, effective working capital management 
and capital expenditure control. A portion of key man-
ager incentive compensation is tied to achieving a targeted 
return on net assets.

RESTRUCTURING CHARGES, 
UNUSUAL ITEMS AND OTHER ACTIVITIES
RESTRUCTURING CHARGES
 During 2006, the Company recognized restructur-
ing charges, net of adjustments, totaling $26.0 mil-
lion ($21.3 million after tax) under two restructuring 
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plans—the 2006 Plan and the 2003 Plan. Of this total 
amount, the Company recognized $17.5 million of restruc-
turing charges, net of adjustments, under the 2006 Plan 
and $8.5 million, net of adjustments, under the 2003 Plan.
 The 2006 Plan, approved in October 2006, initiated 
cost-reduction measures primarily focused on certain of 
the Company’s international operations, principally cen-
tered around Europe. It calls for the closure of approxi-
mately 12 plant locations globally and the reduction of 
approximately 540 positions worldwide. These measures 
began in the fourth quarter of 2006 and are expected to 
be substantially complete by the end of 2007. The 2006 
charges related primarily to the closures of a paper mill 
in France, two tube and core plants—one in Canada and 
one in the United States, and a fl exible packaging opera-
tion in Canada. The charges also include the closures of 
a wooden reels facility and a molded plastics operation 
in the United States as well as the impact of downsizing 
actions primarily in the Company’s European tube and 
core/paper operations. The total pretax cost of the 2006 
Plan is estimated to be approximately $35 million, most of 
which is related to severance and other termination costs; 
accordingly, the vast majority of the cost will result in the 
expenditure of cash. 
 The 2003 Plan, announced in August 2003, was 
designed to reduce the Company’s overall operating cost 
structure by approximately $54 million by realigning and 
centralizing a number of staff functions and eliminat-
ing excess plant capacity. Pursuant to the 2003 Plan, the 
Company has initiated or completed 22 plant closings and 
has reduced its workforce by approximately 1,120 employ-
ees. Net charges recorded in 2006 related primarily to the 
closure of two tube and core plants and a fl exible pack-
aging operation in the United States, and an additional 
asset impairment charge resulting from a revision to the 
estimated sales proceeds of a previously closed paper mill 
located in the United States. These charges consisted of 
severance and termination benefi ts of $1.8 million, asset 
impairment charges of $2.6 million and other exit costs 
of $4.1 million, consisting of building lease termination 
charges and other miscellaneous exit costs. Through the 
end of 2006, the Company has recognized cumulative 
restructuring charges, net of adjustments, of $103.0 million 
under the 2003 Plan. Future restructuring charges to be 
incurred under this plan are expected to be minimal. With 
the exception of ongoing pension subsidies and certain 
building lease termination expenses, costs associated with 

the 2003 Plan are expected to be paid by the end of the 
2007 using cash generated from operations.
 During 2005, the Company recognized restructuring 
charges under the 2003 Plan of $21.2 million ($14.3 million 
after tax), net of adjustments, primarily related to 11 plant 
closings in the Tubes and Cores/Paper segment and 
three plant closings in the Consumer Packaging segment. 
Restructuring charges recognized during 2005 consisted 
of severance and termination benefi ts of $6.2 million, 
asset impairment charges of $6.5 million and other exit 
costs of $8.5 million, consisting of building lease termina-
tion charges and other miscellaneous exit costs. Of the 
$6.5 million of asset impairment charges (related to the 
writeoff/down of assets associated with 11 plant closings), 
the Company recognized writeoffs/downs of impaired 
equipment of $5.9 million and writeoffs/downs related to 
facilities held for sale of $0.6 million. Impaired assets are 
valued at the lower of carrying amount or fair value, less 
estimated costs to sell, if applicable. 
 During 2004, the Company recognized restructur-
ing charges of $19.0 million ($16.2 million after tax), net 
of adjustments, primarily related to plant closings in the 
Tubes and Cores/Paper segment, the Consumer Packaging 
segment and in All Other Sonoco. Included in this amount 
is $2.2 million in restructuring charges, which resulted 
from a correction to previously reported fi nancial state-
ments at the Company’s wholly owned subsidiary in Spain. 
Restructuring charges recognized during 2004 consisted of 
severance and termination benefi ts of $6.5 million, asset 
impairment charges of $6.2 million and other exit costs 
of $6.3 million, consisting of building lease termination 
charges and other miscellaneous exit costs. 
 The Company also recorded noncash, after-tax income 
in the amount of $0.4 million in 2006, $1.3 million in 2005, 
and $1.8 million in 2006 to refl ect a minority sharehold-
er’s portion of restructuring costs that were charged 
to expense. This income, which resulted from the clo-
sure of certain plants that the Company contributed to 
Sonoco-Alcore, is included in “Equity in earnings of affi li-
ates/minority interest in subsidiaries” in the Company’s 
Consolidated Statements of Income.

ACQUISITIONS/JOINT VENTURES
 The Company completed six acquisitions during 2006, 
and purchased the remaining 35.5% minority interest of 
its Sonoco-Alcore joint venture, at an aggregate cost of 
$227.3 million, all of which was paid in cash. Acquisitions 
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in the Company’s Tubes and Cores/Paper segment 
included the remaining 75% interest in Demolli Industria 
Cartaria S.p.A, an Italy-based tube and core/paper manu-
facturer, and a small tube and core manufacturer in 
Canada. Acquisitions made in the Consumer Packaging 
segment included a rotogravure printed fl exible packag-
ing manufacturer in Texas; a rigid paperboard composite 
container manufacturer located in Ohio; and Clear Pack 
Company, a manufacturer of thermoformed and extruded 
plastic materials and containers located in Illinois. In addi-
tion, the Company acquired a small packaging fulfi llment 
business in Illinois, which is included in the Packaging 
Services segment. These acquisitions are expected to 
provide approximately $130 million in reported sales in 
2007. Also in 2006, the Company purchased the remain-
ing 35.5% interest in Sonoco-Alcore, a European tube, core 
and coreboard joint venture between the Company and 
Ahlstrom Corporation. Results for the Sonoco-Alcore joint 
venture, part of the Tubes and Cores/Paper segment, have 
been consolidated in the Company’s results since its origi-
nal formation in 2004; accordingly, no additional sales will 
result from the purchase of the remaining interest.
 In 2005, the Company completed three minor acquisi-
tions with an aggregate cost of $3.6 million, all of which 
were paid in cash. 
 The Company completed nine acquisitions during 
2004 with an aggregate cost of $367 million, of which 
$267 million was paid in cash. The most signifi cant acqui-
sition in 2004 was CorrFlex Graphics, LLC, one of the 
nation’s largest point-of-purchase display companies. The 
acquired business, which is known as Sonoco CorrFlex, 
LLC, is refl ected in the Packaging Services segment. 
Acquisitions in the Company’s Tubes and Cores/Paper seg-
ment included tube and core manufacturers in Australia, 
China and the United States. During the fourth quarter 
of 2004, the Company also completed a business com-
bination with Ahlstrom Corporation, Helsinki, Finland 
(Ahlstrom), by which each of the companies’ respective 
European paper-based tube/core and coreboard operations 
were combined into a joint venture that operates under the 
name Sonoco-Alcore S.a.r.l. and is refl ected in the Tubes 
and Cores/Paper segment. The Company contributed 
ownership positions in 25 tube and core plants and fi ve 
paper mills to Sonoco-Alcore, and held a 64.5% interest in 
the joint venture. Ahlstrom, a leader in high-performance 
fi ber-based materials serving niche markets worldwide, 
contributed 14 tube and core plants and one paper mill to 
Sonoco-Alcore, and held a 35.5% interest in the joint ven-
ture. As noted above, the Company acquired this remain-
ing 35.5% interest during 2006. The Company accounted 
for this transaction as an acquisition and, therefore, consol-

idated the joint venture and reported Ahlstrom’s ownership 
as minority interest in the Company’s fi nancial statements. 
The recognition of Ahlstrom’s share of the joint venture’s 
net income was included in “Equity in earnings of affi li-
ates/minority interest in subsidiaries” in the Company’s 
Consolidated Statements of Income until acquisition of 
the remaining minority interest was completed in 2006. 
Acquisitions in the Company’s Consumer Packaging seg-
ment included a composite can manufacturer in Australia, 
a manufacturer of rotogravure cylinders in Canada and the 
remaining ownership interest in a manufacturer of roto-
gravure cylinders in Charlotte, N.C. The Company also 
acquired certain assets of a wooden reel refurbisher in 
Alabama, which are reported in All Other Sonoco.

DISPOSITIONS
 In December 2005, the Company divested its single-
plant folding cartons business for a note receivable of 
approximately $11.0 million, which was collected in early 
2006. This transaction resulted in a gain of $2.4 million 
($1.6 million after tax). The results of this business unit 
were immaterial to the Company’s consolidated net 
income for all periods presented.

OTHER SPECIAL CHARGES, INCOME ITEMS 
AND CONTINGENCIES
 During the fourth quarter of 2005, the United States 
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) notifi ed U.S. Paper 
Mills Corp. (U.S. Mills), a wholly owned subsidiary of the 
Company, that U.S. Mills and NCR Corporation (NCR), an 
unrelated company, would be held jointly responsible to 
undertake a program to remove and dispose of certain 
PCB-contaminated sediments at a particular site on the 
lower Fox River in Wisconsin. U.S. Mills and NCR reached 
agreement between themselves that each would fund 50% 
of the costs of remediation, which the Company currently 
estimates to be between $24 million and $26 million for 
the project as a whole. Project implementation began in 
2006; however, most of the project costs are expected 
to be incurred in 2007. Although the agreement reached 
does not acknowledge responsibility or prevent either 
party from seeking reimbursement from any other parties 
(including each other), the Company accrued $12.5 million 
in 2005 as an estimate of the portion of costs that U.S. 
Mills expects to fund under the current agreement. The 
charges recognized for this environmental reserve are 
included in “Selling, general and administrative expenses” 
in the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Income. 
The actual costs associated with cleanup of this particu-
lar site are dependent upon many factors, and it is rea-
sonably possible that remediation costs could be higher 
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than the current estimate of project costs. The Company 
acquired U.S. Mills in 2001, and the identifi ed contami-
nation predates the acquisition. Some or all of any costs 
incurred may be covered by insurance or be recoverable 
from third parties; however, there can be no assurance that 
such claims for recovery will be successful. Accordingly, no 
amounts have been recognized in the fi nancial statements 
for such recovery.
 In June 2006, U.S. Mills fi rst received the results of tests 
it initiated on the U.S. Mills property that suggested that 
its DePere plant might have previously processed more 
than the de minimus amounts of PCB-contaminated paper 
refl ected in the records available to the Company. This 
information seemed to contradict the Company’s previous 
understanding of the history of the DePere plant. Further 
testing of the site is continuing to attempt to determine the 
extent of this recently discovered contamination. Based 
on these most recent fi ndings, it is possible that U.S. Mills 
might be responsible for a larger portion of the remedia-
tion of the lower Fox River than previously anticipated. 
Governmental estimates of the costs for remediation of 
the lower Fox River are several hundred millions of dol-
lars. The information currently available to the Company 
is insuffi cient to determine the probability or amount of 
liability that may be attributable to U.S. Mills. Accordingly, 
as of December 31, 2006, no additional reserve for the 
potential remediation costs of this site has been estab-
lished. However, it is possible that U.S. Mills’ ultimate share 
of the liability could exceed its net worth of approximately 
$90 million, but Sonoco believes the net worth of U.S. 
Mills represents the maximum exposure to the Company’s 
consolidated fi nancial position from these environmental 
claims.
 During 2005, the Company repatriated $124.7 mil-
lion from foreign subsidiaries under the provisions of 
the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 (AJCA). Under 
this temporary incentive, a portion of the repatriated 
funds qualifi ed for an 85% dividends-received deduction. 
Although the effective tax rate on the repatriated funds 
was lower than it would have otherwise been absent 
the AJCA, the repatriation resulted in the recognition of 
additional U.S. federal and state income taxes totaling 
$10.1 million.
 In 2004, the Company recognized charges of 
$5.6 million for the future costs of new executive life 
insurance benefi ts established to replace key executive 
split-dollar life agreements. Due to regulatory changes, 
the Company was not able to maintain those split-dollar 
agreements and the replacement benefi ts for the affected 
employees have been provided to meet the intent and 
commitments of the previous program. Also in 2004, the 

Company incurred a $4.5 million charge related to a trade 
secrets dispute. The charges recognized for the new execu-
tive life insurance benefi ts and the trade secrets dispute are 
included in “Selling, general and administrative expenses” 
in the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Income. 
Additionally, 2004 net income was positively affected by 
$9.7 million due to the recognition of certain tax benefi ts 
as a result of examination conclusions by the Internal 
Revenue Service (IRS) and state tax authorities.
 During the fourth quarter of 2004, the Company deter-
mined that misstatements had been made in the fi nancial 
statements of its wholly owned subsidiary in Spain, which 
consists of two tube and core plants. The primary impact 
of these misstatements was an underreporting of expenses 
over a six-year period totaling approximately $9.4 million, 
before and after tax, of which $2.2 million was related 
to restructuring charges as previously discussed. Of the 
remaining $7.2 million, approximately $1.6 million was 
associated with the fi rst three quarters of 2004, approxi-
mately $1.3 million was associated with 2003, approxi-
mately $.3 million was associated with 2002, approximately 
$1.9 million was associated with 2001 and the remaining 
amount of approximately $2.1 million was associated with 
2000 and prior. As the impact of these misstatements was 
not material to the reported results of any of the prior peri-
ods affected or to the period in which it was recorded, the 
Company recorded the charge in the fourth quarter of 2004.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 2006 VERSUS 2005
 Net income for 2006 was $195.1 million, compared 
with $161.9 million in 2005. The year-over-year increase is 
largely attributable to higher operating profi ts on improved 
productivity and increased selling prices. Gross profi t mar-
gin improved to 19.3%, compared with 18.7% in 2005. Also 
contributing to the year-over-year net income improvement 
was the net effect of fewer special charges, which were 
discussed above. 

OPERATING REVENUE
 Consolidated net sales for 2006 were $3.66 billion, a 
$128 million, or 3.6%, increase over 2005. 
 The components of the sales change were approximately:

($ IN MILLIONS) 

Volume $   41
Selling price 51
Currency exchange rate 39
Acquisitions (net of dispositions) (4)
Other  1
Total sales increase $128
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 Prices were higher throughout the Company, with the 
exception of recovered paper operations, as the Company 
was able to implement price increases to offset the impact 
of higher costs of labor, energy, freight and materials. 
Companywide volume, excluding service center revenue 
which was on a pass-through basis, increased slightly 
less than 1.0% from 2005 levels driven by increases in 
the Tubes and Cores/Paper and Consumer Packaging 
segments. Domestic sales were $2.3 billion, up 2.3% 
from 2005. International sales were $1.3 billion, up 6.2% 
over 2005, driven primarily by the impact of currency 
translation.

COSTS AND EXPENSES
 In 2006, defi ned benefi t pension and postretirement 
expense increased $1.1 million to $44.1 million, ver-
sus $43.0 million in 2005. The Company expects these 
expenses to total approximately $34 million in 2007. This 
reduction will be partially offset by higher defi ned con-
tribution plan costs. The return on assets of U.S.-based 
defi ned benefi t plans was 13.9% in 2006 and 7.2% in 
2005. Over time, investment returns on benefi t plan assets 
impact the Company’s cost of providing pension and post-
retirement benefi ts. The Company’s U.S.-based qualifi ed 
defi ned-benefi t pension plan had a positive funded status 
of $9 million at year-end. None of the Company’s other 
defi ned benefi t plans were fully funded as of December 31, 
2006. The cumulative unfunded liability of these plans at 
December 31, 2006, was $229 million. The Company also 
sponsors the Sonoco Investment and Retirement Plan, a 
defi ned contribution pension plan, for its salaried and non-
union U.S. employees who were hired on or after January 
1, 2004. The Company makes an annual contribution of 4% 
of all eligible pay plus 4% of eligible pay in excess of the 
Social Security wage base. The Company’s total expense 
under this defi ned contribution plan was $1.2 million in 
2006 and $0.4 million in 2005. The Company expects 
the defi ned contribution expense to total approximately 
$5 million in 2007.
 On January 1, 2006, the Company implemented certain 
changes to its U.S.-based retiree medical benefi ts plan. 
These changes included the elimination of a Company 
subsidy toward the cost of retiree medical benefi ts if 
certain age and service criteria were not met, as well as 
the elimination of Company-provided prescription drug 
benefi ts for the majority of its current retirees and all future 
retirees. These changes resulted in a reduction to the accu-
mulated postretirement benefi t obligation of $38 million, 
which is being amortized over a period of 4.6 years 
beginning in 2006. In addition, 2006 long-term disabil-
ity expenses were favorably impacted by both a decrease 

in the number of employees receiving benefi ts and by a 
decrease in the amount of the average claim. 
 Selling, general and administrative expenses as a 
percentage of sales decreased to 9.8% during the year 
from 10.3% in 2005. Included in 2006 was an additional 
$4.1 million of stock-based compensation expense asso-
ciated with the issuance of stock-settled stock apprecia-
tion rights. Recognition of this expense is required under 
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123(R), 
‘Share-Based Payment,’ which the Company adopted 
effective January 1, 2006. Expenses in 2005 included the 
previously mentioned $12.5 million U.S. Mills environ-
mental charge. 
 Operating 
profi ts also 
refl ect restructur-
ing charges of 
$26.0 million and 
$21.2 million in 
2006 and 2005, 
respectively. 
These items are 
discussed in 
more detail in 
the section above 
titled, “Restructuring Charges, Unusual Items and Other 
Activities.”
 Research and development costs, all of which were 
charged to expense, totaled $12.7 million and $14.7 million 
in 2006 and 2005, respectively. Signifi cant 2006 projects in 
Sonoco’s Tubes and Cores/Paper segment included efforts 
to design and develop new products for the construction 
industry and for the fi lm and tape industries. In addition, 
efforts were focused on enhancing performance charac-
teristics of the Company’s tubes and cores in the textile, 
fi lm and paper packaging areas, as well as projects aimed 
at enhancing productivity. The Consumer Packaging seg-
ment continued to invest in development of specialty metal 
closures, fl exible packaging enhancements and rigid plastic 
containers technology. 
 Interest expense totaled $52.0 million for the year 
ended December 31, 2006, compared with $51.6 million 
in 2005. The slight increase in 2006, compared with 2005, 
was due to higher average interest rates, substantially offset 
by lower U.S. and international debt levels. Interest income 
was $6.6 million in 2006, a decrease of $1.3 million, from 
the $7.9 million reported in 2005. The decrease was pri-
marily due to the Company’s repatriation of $124.7 million 
of accumulated offshore cash in December 2005 under the 
American Jobs Creation Act and the subsequent use of the 
repatriated cash to lower domestic debt.
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 The effective tax rate for continuing operations in 2006 
was 34.0%, compared with 36.4% in 2005. Included in the 
effective tax rate for 2006 was the impact of a $5.3 million 
benefi t associated with entering into favorable tax agree-
ments with state tax authorities and closing state tax 
examinations for amounts less than originally anticipated. 
Partially offsetting this is a $4.9 million impact resulting 
from restructuring charges for which a tax benefi t could 
not be recognized. The 2005 effective tax rate refl ects an 
additional $10.1 million of income tax expense associ-
ated with the repatriation of foreign earnings under the 
American Jobs Creation Act. 

OPERATING SEGMENTS
 Consolidated operating profi ts, also referred to as 
“Income before income taxes” on the Consolidated 
Statements of Income, are comprised of the following:

 ($ IN MILLIONS) 2006 2005 % CHANGE

 Consumer Packaging Segment $109.6 $103.5 5.9%

 Tubes and Cores/Paper Segment 148.2 107.0 38.4% 

 Packaging Services Segment 39.2 44.8 (12.6)%

 All Other Sonoco 49.1 40.6 20.9%

 Restructuring and related 

  impairment charges (26.0) (21.2) (22.3)%

 Interest expense, net (45.3) (43.6) (3.9)%

 Consolidated operating profi ts $274.8 $231.1 18.9%

 Segment results viewed by Company management to 
evaluate segment performance do not include restructur-
ing and net interest charges. Accordingly, the term “seg-
ment operating profi ts” is defi ned as the segment’s portion 
of “Income before income taxes” excluding restructur-
ing charges and net interest expense. General corporate 
expenses, with the exception of restructuring charges, 
interest and income taxes, have been allocated as operat-
ing costs to each of the Company’s reportable segments 
and All Other Sonoco. 
 See Note 15 to the Company’s Condensed Consolidated 
Financial Statements for more information on reportable 
segments. 

Consumer Packaging Segment – Results for this seg-
ment are presented as follows:

 ($ IN MILLIONS) 2006 2005 % CHANGE

 Trade sales $1,304.8 $1,247.5  4.6%

 Segment operating profi ts 109.6 103.5 5.9%

 Depreciation, depletion 

  and amortization 55.1 56.3 (2.1)%

 Capital spending 48.2 50.8 (5.2)%

 Sales in this 
segment increased 
due to higher 
selling prices for 
composite cans, 
plastic packaging 
and closures, along 
with the impact of 
favorable exchange 
rates, as the dollar 
weakened against 
foreign currencies. Higher composite can volume was 
partially offset by reduced volume in fl exible packaging 
and closures. Overall, volumes were up 1% in the segment. 
Domestic sales were approximately $925 million, up 3.5% 
from 2005, and international sales were approximately 
$380 million, up 7.4% from 2005.
 Segment operating profi ts were favorably impacted by 
productivity and purchasing initiatives, while selling price 
increases were partially offset by increased costs of energy, 
freight, material and labor. Continued high startup costs at 
the Company’s rigid plastics container plant in Wisconsin 
also dampened operating profi ts in the segment, as did 
operational issues and the loss of a customer at the clo-
sures plant in Brazil. 
 Signifi cant capital spending included numerous pro-
ductivity and customer development projects in the United 
States and Europe. 

Tubes and Cores/Paper Segment – Results for this 
segment are presented as follows:

 ($ IN MILLIONS) 2006 2005 % CHANGE

 Trade sales $1,525.6 $1,482.1  2.9%

 Segment operating profi ts 148.2 107.1 38.4%

 Depreciation, depletion 

  and amortization 85.9 83.7 2.5%

 Capital spending 63.3 62.3 1.6%

 The increase in sales was due to increased selling prices 
and volume in North American paper operations and Asia. 
The effect of favorable exchange rates also increased sales. 
Lower tube and 
core volume in 
most geographic 
segments partially 
offset these favor-
able factors. Overall 
volume in the seg-
ment, including the 
impact of acquisi-
tions, increased by 
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approximately 1%. Domestic sales increased approximately 
$15 million, or 1.9%, to $772.6 million and international 
sales increased approximately $29 million, or 4.0% to 
$753.0 million. 
 Segment operating profi ts increased due to productivity 
and purchasing initiatives along with higher selling prices, 
which offset increases in the costs of energy, freight, 
ma terial and labor. Results in 2005 were impacted by a 
charge of $12.5 million related to an environmental claim 
at a subsidiary’s paper operations in Wisconsin. See “Other 
Special Charges, Income Items and Contingencies” for a 
discussion of this claim. In addition, 2005 results included 
a $3.0 million non-restructuring asset impairment charge 
related to operations in Asia. 
 Signifi cant capital spending included the modifi cation 
of several paper machines, primarily in the United States, 
Mexico and Europe, and building of new tube and core 
plants in Asia.

Packaging Services Segment – Results for this seg-
ment are presented as follows:

 ($ IN MILLIONS) 2006 2005 % CHANGE

 Trade sales $456.8 $455.9  .2%

 Segment operating profi ts 39.2 44.8 (12.6)%

 Depreciation, depletion

  and amortization 11.9 12.0 (0.4)%

 Capital spending 3.4 4.9 (30.0)%

 Sales in this segment were fl at due to the December 
2005 divestiture of a single-plant folding carton operation. 
Higher volumes and selling prices in the service cen-
ters more than offset lower volumes in point-of-purchase 
and fulfi llment operations. Domestic sales decreased to 
$344.9 million, a 3.3% decrease, while international sales 
increased to $111.9 million, up 12.8%, primarily as a result 
of a new service center in Poland increasing output.
 The decrease in segment operating profi ts is attribut-
able to unfavorable changes in the mix of business and the 
impact of a $2.4 million gain on the sale of a cartons facil-
ity in 2005. The service centers’ sales increase had very lit-
tle impact on profi ts, as these sales were on a pass-through 
basis with no 
signifi cant addi-
tional gross margin. 
Productivity and 
purchasing initia-
tives partially offset 
the unfavorable 
factors discussed 
above.
 Capital spending 

included numerous productivity and customer develop-
ment projects in the United States and Europe.

All Other Sonoco – Results for all other businesses not 
included in the segments above are presented as follows:

 ($ IN MILLIONS) 2006 2005 % CHANGE

 Trade sales $369.7 $343.2  7.7%

 Segment operating profi ts 49.1 40.6 20.9%

 Depreciation, depletion

  and amortization 12.0 11.1 8.3%

 Capital spending 8.4 11.1 (24.2)%

 Sales for All Other Sonoco increased due to price 
increases for all businesses, along with higher volumes in 
wire and cable reels and protective packaging. Domestic 
sales were $300.5 million, up 6.3% from 2005, and interna-
tional sales were $69.2 million, an increase of 14.3%.
 Operating profi ts in All Other Sonoco increased due 
primarily to manufacturing productivity and purchasing 
initiatives. The Company was able to recover increases 
in raw material costs, energy, freight and labor through 
higher selling prices. Although higher volume was a sig-
nifi cant reason for the increased sales, operating profi ts did 
not benefi t as changes in the mix of products resulted in 
lower profi t margins. 
 Capital spending included investing in customer 
development projects in the United States and Europe for 
molded and extruded plastics, protective packaging and 
wire and cable reels. 

FINANCIAL POSITION, LIQUIDITY 
AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
CASH FLOW
 Cash fl ow from operations totaled $482.6 million in 
2006, compared with $227.4 million in 2005. One driver 
of this increase was lower contributions to the Company’s 
pension plans, as only $10.5 million was contributed in 
2006, versus $77.0 million in 2005. Increased earnings 
and working capital initiatives, resulting in year-over-year 
reductions in inventories and increases in accounts pay-
able, also favorably impacted operating cash fl ows. The 
projected benefi t obligation of the U.S. Defi ned Benefi t 
Pension Plan was fully funded as of December 31, 2006. 
The Company froze participation for newly hired salaried 
and non-union hourly U.S. employees effective December 
31, 2003. Based on the current actuarial estimates, the 
Company anticipates that the total 2007 contributions 
made to its benefi t plans will be comparable to 2006 lev-
els. However, no assurances can be made about funding 
requirements beyond 2007, as they will depend largely on 
actual investment returns and future actuarial assumptions.



ANNUAL REPORTANNUAL REPORTANNUAL REPORTANNUAL REPORT

MANAGEMENT’S  Discussion and Analysis

39

 02 03 04 05 06

1.6

1.2

.8

.4

CURRENT RATIO

1.41.4

1.11.2

1.4

 Cash fl ows used by investing activities increased 
from $119.3 million in 2005 to $332.1 million in 2006. 
The Company invested $227.3 million in six acquisitions 
and the purchase of the remaining minority interest in a 
European tube, core and coreboard joint venture, in 2006. 
There were no signifi cant acquisitions in 2005. Capital 
expenditures decreased by $5.8 million to $123.3 million 
in 2006 from $129.1 million in 2005. Capital expenditures 
in 2007 are expected to continue to be in the $130 million 
range. As part of its growth strategy, the Company is 
actively seeking acquisition opportunities and the level of 

acquisition spend-
ing in any given 
year will depend 
on the size and 
number of suit-
able candidates 
identifi ed and the 
Company’s suc-
cess at closing the 
transactions.
 Net cash used 

by fi nancing activities totaled $125.7 million in 2006, com-
pared with $165.6 million used in 2005. Cash dividends 
increased 5.1% to $94.7 million during 2006 and cash 
was used to make net payments on debt of $23.6 million. 
During 2006, the Company acquired 2.5 million shares 
of Sonoco common stock at a cost of $82.7 million and 
issued shares through the exercise of previously awarded 
stock options for proceeds of $74.4 million. 
 Current assets increased by $57.3 million to 
$942.8 million at December 31, 2006. This increase is 
largely attributable to higher levels of cash and to a higher 
balance of trade accounts receivable stemming from 2006 
acquisitions. Current liabilities increased by $39.3 million 
to $659.8 million at December 31, 2006. This increase was 
due to higher accounts payable, accrued wages and taxes 
payable, partially offset by decreases in notes payable. The 
current ratio was 1.4 at December 31, 2006 and 2005. 

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS
 The following table summarizes contractual obligations 
at December 31, 2006:

   PAYMENTS DUE IN
     2008- 2010- BEYOND
 ($ IN MILLIONS) TOTAL 2007 2009 2011 2011

 Debt obligations $  764.0 $  51.9 $   0.6 $ 100.0 $  611.5

 Interest payments1 354.0 39.5 79.0 72.2 163.3

 Operating leases 135.7 28.9 43.2 25.8 37.8

 Environmental

  remediation 

  (U.S. Mills)3 11.7 11.7   

 Purchase obligations2 174.1 11.9 25.8 24.2 112.2

 Total contractual

  obligations $1,439.5 $143.9 $148.6 $222.2 $924.8

1 Includes interest payments on outstanding fi xed-rate, long-term debt 
obligations that do not have associated fair value hedges, as well as 
fi nancing fees on the backstop line of credit.
2 Includes only long-term contractual commitments. Does not include 
short-term obligations for the purchase of goods and services used in the 
ordinary course of business.
3 Environmental remediation reserved in 2005.

CAPITAL RESOURCES
 Debt decreased by $17.6 million to $764.0 million at 
December 31, 2006, as cash fl ows from operations were 
used to pay down debt.
 The Company currently operates a commercial paper 
program totaling $350 million and has fully commit-
ted bank lines of credit supporting the program by a 
like amount. On May 3, 2006, the Company entered into 
an amended and restated credit agreement to extend its 
$350 million bank line of credit to a new fi ve-year matu-
rity. The amended and restated credit agreement also 
provides the Company the option to increase its credit 
line to $500 million subject to the concurrence of its 
lenders. The Company intends to indefi nitely maintain 
line of credit agreements fully supporting its commercial 
paper program. At December 31, 2006, the amount of the 
Company’s outstanding commercial paper was $89 million, 
compared to $30 million at December 31, 2005. Consistent 
with the maturity of the supporting line of credit, the 
Company classifi es outstanding commercial paper balances 
as long-term debt.
 One of the Company’s primary growth strategies is 
growth through acquisitions. The Company believes that 
cash on hand, cash generated from operations, and the 
available borrowing capacity under its amended and 
restated credit agreement will enable it to support this 
strategy. Although the Company currently has no intent to 
do so, it may require additional fi nancing in order pur-
sue its growth strategy. Although the Company believes 
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that it has excess borrowing capacity beyond its current 
lines, there can be no assurance that such fi nancing would 
be available or, if so, at terms that are acceptable to the 
Company.
 Effective December 31, 2006, the Company adopted 
the balance sheet recognition provisions of Financial 
Accounting Standards No. 158, “Employers’ Accounting for 
Defi ned Benefi t Pension and Other Postretirement Plans” 
(FAS 158). FAS 158 requires companies to recognize the 
funded status of defi ned benefi t plans on the balance 
sheet. Because FAS 158 is applied on a prospective basis, 
only the 2006 balance sheet is impacted by this change. 
Compared to what the balances would have otherwise 
been at December 31, 2006, applying FAS 158 reduced 
long-term assets by $260 million, increased total liabilities 
by $35 million, reduced long-term deferred tax liabili-
ties by $114 million and reduced shareholders’ equity by 
$181.4 million. The majority of the impact relates to the 
Company’s U.S. qualifi ed retirement plan which, although 
in an over-funded position, had a signifi cant prepaid 
expense balance primarily related to unrecognized actu-
arial losses that was required to be reclassifi ed to equity on 
an after-tax basis. 
 Shareholders’ equity decreased $44.2 million from 
December 31, 2005, to $1.22 billion at December 31, 
2006. The decrease resulted mainly from net income 
of $195.1 million in 2006, stock option exercises of 
$82.7 million, and a foreign currency translation gain 
of $37.2 million, being more than offset by cash divi-
dends of $94.7 million, the repurchase of $82.7 million 
of the Company’s common stock, and a $181.4 million 
adjustment, net of tax, from the initial application of 
FASB Statement No. 158. Shareholders’ equity increased 
$110.4 million from December 31, 2004, to $1.26 billion 
at December 31, 2005. The increase resulted mainly from 
net income of $161.9 million in 2005 and stock option 
exercises of $37.4 million, reduced by dividends of $90.1 
million, a foreign currency translation loss of $12.8 million, 
and minimum pension liability adjustments of $0.6 million. 
 During the fi rst six months of 2006, the Company 
repurchased 2.5 million shares of Sonoco common stock 
for approximately $82.7 million. The shares were repur-
chased under an existing authorization to repurchase up 
to approximately 5.29 million shares. On April 19, 2006, 
the Company’s board of directors rescinded all previously 
approved stock repurchase programs in conjunction with 
the approval of a new program, which authorizes the 
repurchase of up to 5.0 million shares of the Company’s 
common stock. On February 7, 2007, the Company’s 
Board of Directors, in anticipation of a planned 1.5 mil-
lion share repurchase, authorized the reinstatement of 

those shares to its existing 5.0 million share authorization. 
On February 8, 2007, the Company completed the repur-
chase of 1.5 million shares of its common stock at a cost of 
$56.7 million; accordingly, 5.0 million shares remain avail-
able for repurchase. The Company did not repurchase any 
of its common stock in 2005.
 Although the ultimate determination of whether to 
pay dividends is within the sole discretion of the board 
of directors, the Company plans to increase dividends as 
earnings grow. Dividends per common share were $.95 in 
2006, $.91 in 2005 and $.87 in 2004. On February 7, 2007, 
the Company declared a regular quarterly dividend of $.24 
per common share payable on March 9, 2007, to sharehold-
ers of record on February 23, 2007.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS
 The Company had no material off-balance sheet 
arrangements at December 31, 2006.

RISK MANAGEMENT
 As a result of operating globally, the Company is 
exposed to changes in foreign exchange rates. The expo-
sure is well diversifi ed as the Company’s facilities are 
spread throughout the world, and the Company gener-
ally sells in the same countries where it produces. The 
Company monitors these exposures and may use tradi-
tional currency swaps and forward foreign exchange con-
tracts to hedge a portion of the forecasted transactions that 
are denominated in foreign currencies, foreign currency 
assets and liabilities or net investment in foreign subsid-
iaries. The Company’s foreign operations are exposed to 
political and cultural risks, but the risks are mitigated by 
diversifi cation and the relative stability of the countries in 
which the Company has signifi cant operations.
 The Company is exposed to interest-rate fl uctuations as 
a result of using debt as a source of fi nancing its opera-
tions. When necessary, the Company uses traditional, 
unleveraged interest-rate swaps to manage its mix of fi xed 
and variable rate debt to maintain its exposure to interest 
rate movements within established ranges. No such instru-
ments were outstanding at December 31, 2006.
 The Company is a purchaser of commodities such as 
recovered paper, energy, steel, aluminum and resin. The 
Company does not engage in material hedging activi-
ties, other than for energy, because there is usually a high 
correlation between the commodity cost and the ultimate 
selling price of its products. Commodities are generally 
purchased at market or fi xed prices that are established 
with the vendor as part of the purchase process for quanti-
ties expected to be consumed in the ordinary course of 
business. On occasion, where the correlation between sell-
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ing price and commodity price is less direct, the Company 
may enter into commodity futures or swaps to reduce the 
effect of price fl uctuations. 
 At the end of 2006, the Company had contracts out-
standing to fi x the costs of a portion of commodity, energy 
and foreign exchange risks for 2007 through June 2010. 
The swaps qualify as cash fl ow hedges under Statement 
of Financial Accounting Standards No. 133, ‘Accounting for 
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities’ (FAS 133). 
As of December 31, 2006, the Company had swaps to 
cover approximately 8.0 million MMBTUs of natural gas. 
The hedged natural gas quantities at this date represent 
approximately 75%, 56%, 31% and 6% of anticipated U.S. 
and Canadian usage for 2007, 2008, 2009 and 2010, respec-
tively. The use of derivatives to hedge other commodities 
or foreign exchange was not material as of that date. 
 The fair market value of derivatives was a net unfavor-
able position of $3.2 million ($2.1 million after tax) and 
a net favorable position of $17.5 million ($11.2 million 
after tax) at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. 
Derivatives having a favorable position are refl ected 
as a component of “Other Assets” on the Company’s 
Consolidated Financial Statements while those having 
an unfavorable position are refl ected as a component of 
“Other Liabilities.” Derivatives are marked to fair value 
using published market prices, if available, or esti-
mated values based on current price quotes and a dis-
counted cash fl ow model. See Note 9 to the Consolidated 
Financial Statements for more information on fi nancial 
instruments.
 The Company is subject to various federal, state and 
local environmental laws and regulations concerning, 
among other matters, solid waste disposal, wastewater 
effl uent and air emissions. Although the costs of compli-
ance have not been signifi cant due to the nature of the 
materials and processes used in manufacturing opera-
tions, such laws also make generators of hazardous wastes 
and their legal successors fi nancially responsible for 
the cleanup of sites contaminated by those wastes. The 
Company has been named a potentially responsible party 
at several environmentally contaminated sites, both owned 
and not owned by the Company. These regulatory actions 
and a small number of private party lawsuits are believed 
to represent the Company’s largest potential environ-
mental liabilities. Accordingly, the Company has accrued 
$15.3 million (including $11.7 million associated with U.S. 
Mills) at December 31, 2006, compared with $16.8 million 
at December 31, 2005 (including $12.5 million associated 
with U.S. Mills), with respect to these sites. See Note 13 to 
the Consolidated Financial Statements for more informa-
tion on environmental matters.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 2005 VERSUS 2004
 Net income for 2005 was $161.9 million, compared with 
$151.2 million in 2004. This year-over-year increase in net 
income is largely attributable to higher operating profi ts in 
2005, which increased primarily due to savings resulting 
from ongoing productivity and purchasing initiatives. The 
Company experienced a favorable price/cost relationship 
as sales price increases more than offset higher material 
costs, most notably in the Tubes and Cores/Paper segment. 
The full-year impact of acquisitions also contributed to 
earnings growth. Operating profi ts for 2005 were nega-
tively impacted by higher energy, labor and freight costs, 
as well as startup costs associated with the Company’s 
rigid plastic container plant in Wisconsin. Volume, exclud-
ing acquisitions, while contributing favorably to the sales 
growth, had a negligible impact on profi ts, as the change 
in the mix of products sold had an unfavorable effect on 
operating profi ts. In addition, approximately $24.8 million 
of the increased sales in the service centers were on a 
pass-through basis, with no signifi cant gross margin, and 
therefore had very little impact on profi ts. Gross profi t as a 
percentage of net sales was 18.7% in 2005, compared with 
18.2% in 2004. 

OPERATING REVENUE
 Consolidated net sales for 2005 were $3.53 billion, 
versus $3.16 billion in 2004, resulting in an increase of 
approximately $373 million.
 The components of the sales change were approximately:

 ($ IN MILLIONS) 

 Volume   $100

 Selling price   60

 Currency exchange rate   43

 Acquisitions   167

 Other   3

 Total sales increase   $373

 Sales increased primarily due to the full-year impact 
of the CorrFlex acquisition and the Sonoco-Alcore joint 
venture, which increased sales by $80 million and 
$87 million, respectively. Companywide volume, exclud-
ing the increased service revenue in the service centers, 
which was on a pass-through basis, was approximately 
2.4% higher than 2004 levels, driven by increases in the 
Consumer Packaging and Packaging Services segments. 
Higher selling prices for rigid paper and plastic packaging, 
closures, North American tubes and cores, paperboard, 
wire and cable reels, and molded and extruded plastics, 
along with the favorable impact of exchange rates as the 
dollar weakened against foreign currencies, also contrib-
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uted to the sales gain. Domestic sales were $2.3 billion, up 
9.1% from 2004, and international sales were $1.2 billion, 
up 17.4% over 2004, driven primarily by the impact of a 
full-year of sales from Sonoco-Alcore and the impact of 
currency translation discussed above.

COSTS AND EXPENSES
 During 2005, the Company experienced postretirement 
and defi ned benefi t pension expense of $43.0 million, 
versus $45.8 million in 2004, a decrease of $2.3 million. 
The market value of U.S. defi ned benefi t pension plan 
assets increased approximately 7% in 2005 and 13% in 
2004. Investment returns on assets held by the Company’s 
benefi t plans are used to lower the Company’s cost of 
providing pension and postretirement benefi ts. Although 
there was no requirement under the Employee Retirement 
Income Security Act of 1974 to fund the U.S. defi ned ben-
efi t pension plan, the Company contributed $68.0 million 
to the plan during the year to maintain its fully funded 
status on an accumulated benefi t obligation basis. Other 
pension plans in the Company were not fully funded 
as of December 31, 2005. These plans, including the 
Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan, and several inter-
national plans had accrued liabilities associated with their 
plans of $82.3 million and $51.3 million as of December 
31, 2005, respectively. For 2005, the Company used 8.5% as 
its expected long-term rate of return for U.S. pension and 
postretirement benefi t plan assumptions. 
 Selling, general and administrative expenses as a per-
centage of sales increased slightly during the year to 10.3% 
from 9.8% in 2004. Included in 2005 expenses was the 
$12.5 million expense of establishing an environmental 
reserve at the Company’s subsidiary in Wisconsin, while 
2004 costs included charges of $5.6 million pretax, which 
the Company incurred to recognize commitments to pay 
future costs associated with new executive life insurance 
benefi ts and a charge of approximately $4.5 million pretax 
associated with an unfavorable legal judgment that was 
entered against the Company. 
 As previously discussed, operating profi ts included 
$21.2 million and $19.0 million of restructuring charges in 
2005 and 2004, respectively. 
 Research and development costs, all of which were 
charged to expense, totaled $14.7 million and $15.4 million 
in 2005 and 2004, respectively. Signifi cant projects in the 
Company’s Tubes and Cores/Paper segment during 2005 
included efforts to design and develop a new generation of 
products for the construction industry, and to enhance per-
formance characteristics of the Company’s tubes and cores 
in the textile, fi lm and paper packaging areas, as well as 
projects aimed at enhancing productivity. The Consumer 

Packaging segment continued to invest in development of 
specialty metal closures, fl exible packaging enhancements 
and rigid plastic containers technology. 
 Net interest expense increased by approximately 
$1.5 million from $42.1 million in 2004 to $43.6 million in 
2005. The increase in net interest expense resulted primar-
ily from higher average interest rates, partially offset by 
decreased debt levels and increased interest income.
 The effective tax rate in 2005 was 36.4%, compared 
with 29.8% in 2004. Included in the effective tax rate for 
2005 was the impact of an additional $10.1 million expense 
associated with the repatriation of $124.7 million in foreign 
earnings under the American Jobs Creation Act. Included 
in the effective tax rate for 2004 was the impact of the rec-
ognition of tax benefi ts totaling approximately $9.7 million, 
resulting from the conclusions of examinations by the IRS 
and state tax authorities. 

OPERATING SEGMENTS
 Consolidated operating profi ts, which represent 
“Income before income taxes” on the Consolidated 
Statements of Income for 2005 and 2004, are comprised of 
the following:

 ($ IN MILLIONS) 2005 2004 % CHANGE

 Consumer Packaging Segment $103.5 $    83.1 24.5%

 Tubes and Cores/Paper Segment 107.0 113.0 (5.3)% 

 Packaging Services Segment 44.8 30.3 47.9%

 All Other Sonoco 40.6 32.0 26.9%

Restructuring and 

  related impairment charges (21.2) (19.0) (11.6)%

 Interest expense, net (43.6) (42.1) (3.6)%

 Consolidated operating profi ts $231.1 $197.3 17.1%

 Consumer Packaging Segment – Results for this seg-
ment are presented as follows:

 ($ IN MILLIONS) 2005 2004 % CHANGE

 Trade sales $1,247.5 $1,132.1  10.2%

 Segment operating profi ts 103.5 83.1 24.5%

 Depreciation, depletion

  and amortization 56.3 59.4 (5.2)%

 Capital spending 50.8 50.7 0.2%

 Sales in this segment increased due to increased selling 
prices of closures, composite cans and plastic packaging. 
Higher volumes throughout the segment, but specifi cally 
in fl exible packaging, also contributed signifi cantly to the 
sales increases, as did the impact of favorable exchange 
rates, as the dollar weakened against foreign curren-
cies. Overall, volumes were up nearly 5% in the segment. 
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Domestic sales were approximately $894 million, up 6.6% 
from 2004, and international sales were approximately 
$353 million, up 20.6% from 2004.
 Segment operating profi ts were favorably impacted 
by increased volumes, as well as productivity and pur-
chasing initiatives, partially offset by increased costs of 
energy, freight and labor. Continued high startup costs at 
the Company’s rigid plastics container plant in Wisconsin 
also reduced operating profi ts in the segment. Higher raw 
material costs, primarily steel and aluminum, were largely 
offset by increased selling prices.
 Signifi cant spending included numerous productivity 
and customer development projects in the United States 
and Europe. The closures business continued to invest 
in new capacity in Brazil to support increasing global 
demand. 
 Tubes and Cores/Paper Segment – Results for this 
segment are presented as follows:

 ($ IN MILLIONS) 2005 2004 % CHANGE

 Trade sales $1,482.1 $1,388.5  6.7%

 Segment operating profi ts 107.1 113.0 (5.2)%

 Depreciation, depletion

  and amortization 83.7 85.2 (1.8)%

 Capital spending 62.3 59.4 4.9%

 The increase in sales was due primarily to the recog-
nition of a full-year’s impact of the Sonoco-Alcore joint 
venture, which resulted in $86.6 million of higher sales. 
The impact of favorable exchange rates as the dollar weak-
ened against foreign currencies along with increased sell-
ing prices, were partially offset by lower volume in North 
American and European tubes and cores. Volume, exclud-
ing the impact of the joint venture, declined approximately 
2%, due primarily to declines in the textile and news-
print industries. Domestic sales decreased approximately 
$4 million, or .5%, to $758.0 million and international 
sales increased approximately $98 million, or 15.6% to 
$724.1 million. 
 Segment operating profi ts were unfavorably impacted 
by a charge of $12.5 million related to an increase in the 
environmental reserve at a Company subsidiary’s paper 
operations in Wisconsin; decreased volume, primarily in 
the textile and newsprint markets; and increased costs 
of energy, freight and labor. These increased costs were 
partially offset by year-over-year savings from productiv-
ity and purchasing initiatives, and a favorable price/cost 
relationship. A $5.6 million charge associated with an 
accounting adjustment from a wholly owned subsidiary in 
Spain, which was related to prior years, was recorded in 
2004, as discussed above under “Other Special Charges, 

Income Items and Contingencies,” while 2005 results were 
impacted by a $3.0 million asset impairment charge related 
to operations in Asia.
 This segment benefi ted by approximately $8.9 million 
from energy hedges in place during the period.
 Signifi cant capital spending included the rebuilding and 
modifi cation of several paper mills, primarily in the United 
States, Mexico and Europe, and building new tube and 
core plants in Asia. 
 Packaging Services Segment – Results for this seg-
ment are presented as follows:

 ($ IN MILLIONS) 2005 2004 % CHANGE

 Trade sales $455.9 $321.0  42.0%

 Segment operating profi ts 44.8 30.3 47.9%

 Depreciation, depletion

  and amortization 12.0 8.2 46.3%

 Capital spending 4.9 3.3 48.5%

 Sales in this segment increased primarily due to the 
recognition of a full-year’s impact of the May 2004 acqui-
sition of CorrFlex. In addition, higher volumes contrib-
uted $56.5 million to the increase in sales. Domestic sales 
increased to $356.7 million, a 43.9% increase, while inter-
national sales increased to $99.2 million, or 35.5%.
 Although the increase in segment operating profi ts in 
this segment is largely attributable to the full-year’s impact 
of the acquisition of CorrFlex, productivity and purchas-
ing initiatives in the service centers also contributed to the 
improvement. Approximately $25 million of increased sales 
in the Company’s service centers were on a pass-through 
basis and, therefore, had very little impact on profi ts. The 
impact of infl ation partially offset the favorable variances 
discussed above.
 Signifi cant spending included numerous productivity 
and customer development projects in the United States 
and Europe. 
 All Other Sonoco – Results for all other businesses not 
included in the segments above are presented as follows:

 ($ IN MILLIONS) 2005 2004 % CHANGE

 Trade sales $343.2 $313.8  9.3%

 Operating profi ts 40.6 32.0 26.9%

 Depreciation, depletion

  and amortization 11.1 11.1 0.0%

 Capital spending 11.1 6.4 73.4%

  Sales for All Other Sonoco increased due to price 
increases for molded and extruded plastics, wire and cable 
reels, and protective packaging, along with higher volumes 
in wire and cable reels and protective packaging. Domestic 
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sales were approximately $283 million, up 11.5% from 
2004, and international sales were approximately $60 mil-
lion, basically fl at compared with the prior year.
 Operating profi ts in All Other Sonoco increased pri-
marily due to manufacturing productivity and purchas-
ing initiatives and a favorable price/cost relationship, as 
the Company was able to recover increases in raw mate-
rial costs, including lumber, resin and paper, via price 
increases to the customers. Although higher volume was a 
signifi cant reason for the increased sales, operating profi ts 
were not impacted materially as changes in the mix of 
products resulted in lower profi t margins. 
 Signifi cant spending included investing in customer 
development projects in the United States and Europe for 
molded and extruded plastics, protective packaging and 
wire and cable reels.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES
 Management’s discussion and analysis of the Company’s 
fi nancial condition and results of operations are based 
upon the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements, 
which have been prepared in accordance with account-
ing principles generally accepted in the United States (US 
GAAP). The preparation of fi nancial statements in confor-
mity with US GAAP requires management to make esti-
mates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of 
assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, and the disclo-
sure of contingent assets and liabilities. The Company 
evaluates these estimates and assumptions on an ongoing 
basis, including but not limited to those related to invento-
ries, bad debts, derivatives, income taxes, intangible assets, 
restructuring, pension and other postretirement benefi ts, 
environmental liabilities and contingencies and litigation. 
Estimates and assumptions are based on historical and 
other factors believed to be reasonable under the circum-
stances. The results of these estimates may form the basis 
of the carrying value of certain assets and liabilities and 
may not be readily apparent from other sources. Actual 
results, under conditions and circumstances different from 
those assumed, may differ from estimates. The impact 
and any associated risks related to estimates, assumptions 
and accounting policies are discussed in Management’s 
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results 
of Operations, as well as in the Notes to the Consolidated 
Financial Statements, if applicable, where such estimates, 
assumptions and accounting policies affect the Company’s 
reported and expected fi nancial results.
 The Company believes the accounting policies dis-
cussed in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial 
Statements on pages 54 through 76 are critical to under-
standing the results of its operations. The following discus-

sion represents those policies that involve the more signifi -
cant judgments and estimates used in the preparation of 
the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements.

IMPAIRMENT OF LONG-LIVED, 
INTANGIBLE AND OTHER ASSETS
 Assumptions and estimates used in the evaluation of 
potential impairment may affect the carrying values of 
long-lived, intangible and other assets and possible impair-
ment expense in the Company’s Consolidated Financial 
Statements. The Company evaluates its long-lived assets 
(property, plant and equipment), defi nite-lived intangible 
assets, and other assets (including notes receivable and 
preferred stock) for impairment whenever indicators of 
impairment exist, or when it commits to sell the asset. If 
the sum of the undiscounted expected future cash fl ows 
from a long-lived asset or defi nite-lived intangible asset is 
less than the carrying value of that asset, an asset impair-
ment charge is recognized. The amount of the impairment 
charge is calculated as the excess of the asset’s carrying 
value over its fair value, which generally represents the 
discounted future cash fl ows from that asset, or in the 
case of assets the Company evaluates for sale, at fair value 
less costs to sell. A number of signifi cant assumptions and 
estimates are involved in developing operating cash fl ow 
forecasts for the Company’s discounted cash fl ow model, 
including markets and market share, sales volumes and 
prices, costs to produce, working capital changes and capi-
tal spending requirements. The Company considers histori-
cal experience, and all available information at the time 
the fair values of its assets are estimated. However, fair 
values that could be realized in an actual transaction may 
differ from those used to evaluate impairment. In addition, 
changes in the assumptions and estimates may result in a 
different conclusion regarding impairment.

IMPAIRMENT OF GOODWILL
 In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting 
Standards No. 142, ‘Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets’ 
(FAS 142), the Company evaluates its goodwill for impair-
ment at least annually, and more frequently if indicators 
of impairment are present. FAS 142 requires that if the 
fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying value 
including goodwill, an impairment charge for goodwill 
must be recognized. The impairment charge is calculated 
as the difference between the implied fair value of the 
reporting unit goodwill and its carrying value.
 The Company’s reporting units are the same as its 
operating segments, as determined in accordance with FAS 
131. Accordingly, these reporting units refl ect the way the 
Company manages its business, and impairment testing at 
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this reporting unit level refl ects how the Company is man-
aged overall. The components within these reporting units 
serve similar types of customers, provide similar services, 
and operate in similar regulatory environments. The ben-
efi ts of goodwill are shared by each component.
 In performing the impairment evaluation required by 
FAS 142, the Company estimates the fair value of each 
reporting unit and compares it to the carrying amount 
of that reporting unit. If the carrying amount of a report-
ing unit exceeds the fair value of that reporting unit, the 
Company compares the implied fair value of the report-
ing unit goodwill with the carrying amount of the report-
ing unit goodwill. The implied fair value of goodwill is 
determined by allocating the fair value of the reporting 
unit to all of the assets (recognized and unrecognized), 
and liabilities of the reporting unit. The residual fair value 
after this allocation is the implied fair value of the report-
ing unit goodwill. The excess, if any, of the carrying value 
over the implied fair value represents the amount of the 
impairment. That excess would be refl ected as a loss on 
the income statement. 
 The Company uses a discounted cash fl ow model 
to estimate the fair value of each reporting unit. The 
Company considers historical experience and all available 
information at the time the fair values of its businesses are 
estimated. Key assumptions and estimates used in the cash 
fl ow model include discount rate, sales growth, margins 
and capital expenditures and working capital requirements. 
Fair values that could be realized in an actual transaction 
may differ from those used to evaluate the impairment 
of goodwill. In addition, changes in the assumptions and 
estimates may result in a different conclusion regarding 
impairment.
 The annual evaluation of goodwill impairment that was 
completed during 2006 used forward-looking projections, 
including expected improvement in the results of certain 
reporting units, most notably, the European operations 
within the Tubes and Cores/Paper segment. The assess-
ment of the relevant facts and circumstances is ongoing, 
and if actual performance in this reporting unit falls signifi -
cantly short of the projected results, it is reasonably pos-
sible that a noncash impairment charge would be required.

INCOME TAXES
 The Company records an income tax valuation allow-
ance when the realization of certain deferred tax assets, 
net operating losses and capital loss carryforwards is not 
likely. These deferred tax assets represent expenses rec-
ognized for fi nancial reporting purposes, which will result 
in tax deductions over varying future periods. Certain 
judgments, assumptions and estimates may affect the 

amounts of the valuation allowance and deferred income 
tax expense in the Company’s Consolidated Financial 
Statements. Additionally, the Company periodically reviews 
assumptions and estimates of the Company’s probable tax 
obligations using historical experience in tax jurisdictions 
and informed judgments.

STOCK COMPENSATION PLANS
 Effective January 1, 2006, the Company adopted the 
fair value method of accounting for share-based com-
pensation arrangements in accordance with Statement of 
Financial Accounting Standards No. 123 (revised 2004), 
‘Share-Based Payment’ (FAS 123(R)), using the modi-
fi ed prospective method of transition. Using the modifi ed 
prospective method, compensation expense is recognized 
beginning at the effective date of adoption of FAS 123(R) 
for all share-based payments (i) granted after the effec-
tive date of adoption and (ii) granted prior to the effective 
date of adoption and that remain unvested on the date of 
adoption. The Company had no unvested stock options 
outstanding at the date of adoption. The Company recog-
nizes share-based compensation cost ratably over expected 
vesting periods. 
 In accordance with the adoption of FAS 123(R), the 
Company chose to adopt the short-cut method to deter-
mine the pool of windfall tax benefi ts as it relates to 
stock-based compensation.
 Certain awards are in the form of contingent stock units 
where both the ultimate number of units and the vesting 
period are performance-based. The amount and timing 
of compensation expense associated with these perfor-
mance-based awards are based on estimates regarding 
future performance using measures defi ned in the plan. 
In 2006, the performance measures consisted of Earnings 
per Share and Return on Net Assets Employed. Changes in 
estimates regarding the future achievement of these per-
formance measures may result in signifi cant fl uctuations 
from period to period in the amount of compensation 
expense refl ected in the Company’s Consolidated Financial 
Statements.
 The Company uses the binomial option-pricing model 
to determine the grant date fair value of its stock options 
and stock appreciation rights. The binomial option-pric-
ing model requires the input of highly subjective assump-
tions. Management routinely assesses the assumptions 
and methodologies used to calculate estimated fair value 
of share-based compensation. Circumstances may change 
and additional data may become available over time that 
result in changes to these assumptions and methodologies, 
which could materially impact the fair value determination.
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PENSION AND POSTRETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS
 The Company has signifi cant pension and postretire-
ment benefi t costs that are developed from actuarial valu-
ations. The actuarial valuations employ key assumptions, 
which are particularly important when determining the 
Company’s projected liabilities for pension and other post-
retirement benefi ts. The key actuarial assumptions used at 
December 31, 2006, in determining the projected ben-
efi t obligation and the accumulated benefi t obligation for 
U.S. retirement and retiree health and life insurance plans 
include: a discount rate of 5.84%, 5.77% and 5.68% for the 
qualifi ed retirement plan, non-qualifi ed retirement plans, 
and retiree health and life insurance plan, respectively; an 
expected long-term rate of return on plan assets of 8.5%; 
and a rate of compensation increase ranging from 4.69% to 
4.88%. A discount rate of 5.50% was used to determine net 
periodic benefi t cost for 2006.
 The Company adjusts its discount rates at the end of 
each fi scal year based on yield curves of high-quality debt 
instruments over durations that match the expected benefi t 
payouts of each plan. The long-term rate of return assump-
tion is based on the Company’s historical plan return 
performance and a range of probable return outcomes 
given the targeted asset class weights of the portfolios. 
The rate of compensation increase assumption is generally 
based on salary and incentive increases. A key assump-
tion for the U.S. health and life insurance plan is a medical 
trend rate beginning at 12.3% for post-age 65 participants 
and trending down to an ultimate rate of 6.0% in 2014. 
The ultimate trend rate of 6.0% represents the Company’s 
best estimate of the long-term average annual medical 
cost increase over the duration of the plan’s liabilities. It 
provides for real growth in medical costs in excess of the 
overall infl ation level. 
 During 2006, the Company incurred total pension 
and postretirement benefi t expenses of approximately 
$44.1 million, compared with $43.0 million during 2005. 
The 2006 amount is net of $83.6 million of expected 
returns on plan assets at the assumed rate of 8.5%, and 
includes interest cost of $69.5 million at a discount rate 
of 5.50%. The 2005 amount is net of $75.2 million of 
expected returns on plan assets at the assumed rate of 
8.5%, and includes interest cost of $67.6 million at a dis-
count rate of 5.75%. During 2006, the Company made 
contributions to pension plans of $10.5 million and 
postretirement plans of approximately $5.0 million. The 
contribution amount varies from year to year depend-
ing on factors including asset market value volatility and 
interest rates. Although the cash portion of these contribu-
tions reduced cash fl ows from operations during the year, 
under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 87, 

‘Employers’ Accounting for Pensions’ (FAS 87), they did not 
have an immediate signifi cant impact on pension expense. 
Cumulative net actuarial losses were approximately 
$393.1 million at December 31, 2006, and are primarily 
the result of poor asset performance during 2000 through 
2002. The amortization period for losses/gains is approxi-
mately 11 years for the portion outside the 10% corridor as 
defi ned by FAS 87, except for curtailments, which would 
result in accelerated expense.
 Other assumptions and estimates impacting the pro-
jected liabilities of these plans include infl ation, partici-
pant withdrawal and mortality rates, and retirement ages. 
The Company annually reevaluates assumptions used in 
projecting the pension and postretirement liabilities and 
associated expense. These judgments, assumptions and 
estimates may affect the carrying value of pension and 
postretirement plan net assets and liabilities and pen-
sion and postretirement plan expenses in the Company’s 
Consolidated Financial Statements. The sensitivity to 
changes in the critical assumptions for the Company’s U.S. 
plans as of December 31, 2006 is as follows:

   DECEMBER 31, 2006
    PROJECTED 
    BENEFIT 
   PERCENTAGE OBLIGATION 2006 EXPENSE
 ASSUMPTION POINT  HIGHER HIGHER
 ($ IN MILLIONS) CHANGE (LOWER) (LOWER)

 Discount rate -.25 pts $31.3 $3.3

 Expected return

  on assets -.25 pts N/A $1.9

 See Note 11 to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
for additional information on the Company’s pension and 
postretirement plans.

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS
 Information regarding recent accounting pronounce-
ments is provided in Note 17 of the Consolidated Financial 
Statements on page 75.
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RISK FACTORS
 In addition to the risks addressed in Management’s 
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results 
of Operations, the following factors should be considered 
related to the Company’s overall risk profi le:

GENERAL ECONOMIC CONDITIONS IN THE 
UNITED STATES MAY CHANGE, HAVING A 
NEGATIVE IMPACT ON THE COMPANY’S EARNINGS
 Domestic sales accounted for approximately 64% of 
the Company’s consolidated revenues. Even with the 
Company’s diversifi cation across various markets and 
customers, due to the nature of the Company’s products 
and services, a general economic downturn could have an 
adverse impact on the Company’s reported results.

RAW MATERIALS PRICE INCREASES 
MAY REDUCE NET INCOME
 Many of the raw materials the Company uses are com-
modities purchased from third parties. Principal examples 
are recovered paper, steel, aluminum and resin. Prices of 
these commodities are subject to substantial fl uctuations 
that are beyond the Company’s control and can adversely 
affect profi tability. Many of the Company’s long-term 
contracts with customers permit limited price adjustments 
to refl ect increased raw material costs. Although these 
and other prices may be increased in an effort to offset 
increases in raw materials costs, such adjustments may not 
occur quickly enough, or be suffi cient to prevent a materi-
ally adverse effect on net income and cash fl ow.

THE COMPANY MAY ENCOUNTER 
DIFFICULTIES INTEGRATING ACQUISITIONS, 
RESTRUCTURING OPERATIONS OR CLOSING 
OR DISPOSING OF FACILITIES
 The Company has made numerous acquisitions in 
recent years, and may actively seek new acquisitions that 
management believes will provide meaningful opportuni-
ties in the markets it serves. Acquired businesses may not 
achieve the expected levels of revenue, profi t or productiv-
ity, or otherwise perform as expected.
 Acquisitions also involve special risks, including, with-
out limitation, the potential assumption of unanticipated 
liabilities and contingencies, and diffi culties in integrat-
ing acquired businesses. While management believes that 
acquisitions will improve the Company’s competitiveness 
and profi tability, no assurance can be given that acquisi-
tions will be successful or accretive to earnings.
 The Company has closed higher-cost facilities, sold 
non-core assets and otherwise restructured operations in 
an effort to improve cost competitiveness and profi tabil-

ity. Some of these activities are ongoing, and there is no 
guarantee that any such activities will not divert the atten-
tion of management or disrupt the ordinary operations of 
the Company. Moreover, production capacity, or the actual 
amount of products produced, may be reduced as a result 
of these activities.

ENERGY PRICE INCREASES MAY 
REDUCE NET INCOME
 The Company’s manufacturing operations require the 
use of substantial amounts of electricity and natural gas, 
which may be subject to signifi cant price fl uctuations 
as the result of changes in overall supply and demand. 
Energy usage is forecasted and monitored, and the 
Company may, from time to time, use commodity futures 
or swaps in an attempt to reduce the impact of energy 
price increases. The Company cannot guarantee success 
in these efforts, and could suffer adverse effects to net 
income and cash fl ow should the Company be unable to 
pass higher energy costs through to its customers.

THE COMPANY MAY NOT BE ABLE TO DEVELOP 
NEW PRODUCTS ACCEPTABLE TO THE MARKET
 The Company relies on new product development 
for organic growth within the markets it serves. If new 
products acceptable to the Company’s customers are not 
developed in a timely fashion, growth potential may be 
hindered.

THE COMPANY MAY NOT BE ABLE TO LOCATE 
SUITABLE ACQUISITION CANDIDATES
 If signifi cant acquisition candidates that meet the 
Company’s specifi c criteria are not located, the Company’s 
potential for growth may be restricted. 

CONDITIONS IN FOREIGN COUNTRIES WHERE THE 
COMPANY OPERATES MAY REDUCE EARNINGS
 The Company has operations throughout North and 
South America, Europe, Australia and Asia, with facilities in 
35 countries. In 2006, approximately 36% of consolidated 
sales came from operations and sales outside of the United 
States. Accordingly, economic conditions, political situa-
tions, and changing laws and regulations in those countries 
may adversely affect revenues and income.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE FLUCTUATIONS MAY 
REDUCE THE COMPANY’S EARNINGS
 As a result of operating globally, the Company is 
exposed to changes in foreign exchange rates. Generally, 
each of the Company’s foreign operations both pro-
duces and sells in their respective local currencies. As 
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a result, foreign-exchange transaction risk is not signifi -
cant. However, the Company’s reported results of opera-
tions and fi nancial position could be negatively affected 
by exchange rates when the activities and balances of 
its foreign operations are translated into U.S. dollars for 
fi nancial reporting purposes. The Company monitors its 
exposures and, from time to time, may use currency swaps 
and forward foreign exchange contracts to hedge certain 
forecasted transactions denominated in foreign currencies, 
foreign currency assets and liabilities or the net investment 
in foreign subsidiaries. To date, the extent to which the 
Company has hedged its net investments in foreign subsid-
iaries has been limited.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
 Statements included in this Annual Report that are not 
historical in nature, are intended to be, and are hereby 
identifi ed as “forward-looking statements” for purposes of 
the safe harbor provided by Section 21E of the Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. The words “esti-
mate,” “project,” “intend,” “expect,” “believe,” “consider,” 
“plan,” “anticipate,” “objective,” “goal,” “guidance” and 
similar expressions identify forward-looking statements. 
Forward-looking statements include, but are not limited 
to statements regarding offsetting high raw material costs; 
improved productivity and cost containment; adequacy of 
income tax provisions; refi nancing of debt; adequacy of 
cash fl ows; anticipated amounts and uses of cash fl ows; 
effects of acquisitions and dispositions; adequacy of provi-
sions for environmental liabilities; fi nancial strategies and 
the results expected from them; continued payments of 
dividends; stock repurchases; and producing improvements 
in earnings. Such forward-looking statements are based on 
current expectations, estimates and projections about our 
industry, management’s beliefs and certain assumptions 
made by management. Such information includes, without 
limitation, discussions as to guidance and other estimates, 
expectations, beliefs, plans, strategies and objectives con-
cerning our future fi nancial and operating performance. 
These statements are not guarantees of future performance 
and are subject to certain risks, uncertainties and assump-
tions that are diffi cult to predict. Therefore, actual results 
may differ materially from those expressed or forecasted in 
such forward-looking statements. The risks and uncertain-
ties include, without limitation:
• Availability and pricing of raw materials; 
• Success of new product development and introduction; 
• Ability to maintain or increase productivity levels and 
contain or reduce costs; 
• International, national and local economic and market 
conditions; 

• Fluctuations in obligations and earnings of pension and 
postretirement benefi t plans; 
• Ability to maintain market share; 
• Pricing pressures and demand for products; 
• Continued strength of our paperboard-based tubes and 
cores and composite can operations; 
• Anticipated results of restructuring activities; 
• Resolution of income tax contingencies; 
• Ability to successfully integrate newly acquired busi-
nesses into the Company’s operations; 
• Currency stability and the rate of growth in foreign 
markets; use of fi nancial instruments to hedge foreign cur-
rency, interest rate and commodity price risk; 
• Actions of government agencies and changes in laws 
and regulations affecting the Company;
• Anticipated costs of environmental remediation actions; 
• Loss of consumer confi dence; and 
• Economic disruptions resulting from terrorist activities. 
 The Company undertakes no obligation to publicly 
update or revise forward-looking statements, whether as a 
result of new information, future events or otherwise. In 
light of these risks, uncertainties and assumptions, the for-
ward-looking events discussed in this Annual Report might 
not occur.

REFERENCES TO OUR WEB SITE ADDRESS
 References to our Web site address and domain names 
throughout this Annual Report are for informational pur-
poses only, or to fulfi ll specifi c disclosure requirements 
of the Securities and Exchange Commission’s rules or the 
New York Stock Exchange Listing Standards. These refer-
ences are not intended to, and do not, incorporate the con-
tents of our Web sites by reference into this Annual Report.
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RECONCILIATION of Non-GAAP Financial Measures (Unaudited)
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS EXCEPT PER SHARE

 The Company’s results determined in accordance with 
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) are 
referred to as “as reported” results. Some of the informa-
tion presented in this report refl ects the Company’s “as 
reported” results adjusted to exclude certain amounts 
related to the Company’s restructuring initiatives and certain 
non-recurring or infrequent and unusual expenses. These 
adjustments result in the non-GAAP fi nancial measures 
referred to in this report as “Base Earnings” and “Base 
Earnings per Diluted Share.”
 These non-GAAP measures are not in accordance with, 
or an alternative for, generally accepted accounting prin-
ciples and may be different from non-GAAP measures used 
by other companies. In addition, these non-GAAP measures 
are not based on any comprehensive set of accounting rules 
or principles. Sonoco continues to provide all information 
required by GAAP, but it believes that evaluating its ongo-
ing operating results may not be as useful if an investor or 
other user is limited to reviewing only GAAP fi nancial mea-
sures. Accordingly, Sonoco uses these non-GAAP fi nancial 
measures for internal planning and forecasting purposes, to 
evaluate its ongoing operations, and to evaluate the ulti-
mate performance of each business unit against budget all 
the way up through the evaluation of the chief executive 
offi cer’s performance by the board of directors. In addi-
tion, these same non-GAAP measures are used in deter-
mining incentive compensation for the entire management 
team and in providing earnings guidance to the investing 
community.  
 Sonoco management does not, nor does it suggest 
that investors should, consider these non-GAAP fi nancial 
measures in isolation from, or as a substitute for, fi nancial 
information prepared in accordance with GAAP. Sonoco 
presents these non-GAAP fi nancial measures to provide 
users information to evaluate Sonoco’s operating results in 
a manner similar to how management evaluates business 
performance. Material limitations associated with the use of 
such measures are that they do not refl ect all period costs 
included in operating expenses and may not refl ect fi nancial 
results that are comparable to fi nancial results of other com-
panies that present similar costs differently. Furthermore, 
the calculations of these non-GAAP measures are based 
on subjective determinations of management regarding 
the nature and classifi cation of events and circumstances 
that the investor may fi nd material and view differently. To 
compensate for these limitations, management believes that 
it is useful in understanding and analyzing the results of the 
business to review both GAAP information that includes the 

impact of restructuring charges and certain unusual items, 
and the non-GAAP measures that exclude them. Whenever 
Sonoco uses a non-GAAP fi nancial measure, it provides a 
reconciliation of the non-GAAP fi nancial measure to the 
most closely applicable GAAP fi nancial measure. Investors 
are encouraged to review the related GAAP fi nancial mea-
sures and the reconciliation of these non-GAAP fi nancial 
measures to their most directly comparable GAAP fi nancial 
measures as detailed below.

NET SALES, EXCLUDING DIVESTED BUSINESSES
 Net sales, excluding divested businesses is a non-GAAP 
fi nancial measure of revenue, which retroactively excludes 
the net sales of all divested businesses and is used in the 
calculation of the compound annual growth rate of sales. 
The following table sets forth the reconciliation of GAAP net 
sales to net sales, excluding divested businesses:

   1ST 2ND 3RD 4TH  ANNUAL
   QUAR. QUAR. QUAR. QUAR. YEAR EPS

 2006
 Net income,
  as reported (GAAP) $45.1 $49.3 $61.1 $39.5 $195.1 $1.92
 Adjusted for:
  Restructuring charges,
     net of tax 1.4 1.6 .6 17.4 20.9 .21

 Base earnings
  (non-GAAP) $46.5 $50.9 $61.7 $56.9 $216.0 $2.13
2005
Net income,
  as reported (GAAP) $37.0 $40.2 $45.9 $38.8 $161.9 $1.61
 Adjusted for:
  Restructuring charges, 
     net of tax 3.1 5.6 2.5 1.8 13.0 .13
  Environmental reserve, 
     net of tax    7.6 7.6 .08
  Taxes on repatriation 
     of foreign earnings    10.1 10.1 .10

Base earnings
  (non-GAAP) $40.1 $45.8 $48.4 $58.3 $192.6 $1.92

 YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 1995 2000 2006

 Net sales,
  as reported (GAAP) $2,556,248 $2,570,708 $3,656,839
  Adjusted for:   
   Net sales from 
   businesses
   subsequently divested (522,429) (25,206)

 Net sales, excluding 
  divested businesses
  (non-GAAP) $2,033,819 $2,545,502 $3,656,839

 Five-year compound
  annual growth rate
 1995-2000  4.6% 

 2000-2006   6.2%
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CONSOLIDATED Balance Sheets
SONOCO PRODUCTS COMPANY AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

 (DOLLARS AND SHARES IN THOUSANDS)  
 AT DECEMBER 31 2006 2005

 Assets  
 Current Assets  
  Cash and cash equivalents   $       86,498 $         59,608
  Trade accounts receivable, net of allowances of 
   $8,983 in 2006 and $8,325 in 2005  459,022 413,209
  Other receivables   33,287 45,225
  Inventories  
   Finished and in process   126,067 124,891
   Materials and supplies   177,781 193,425
  Prepaid expenses   27,611 23,068
  Deferred income taxes   32,532 26,074
        942,798 885,500
 Property, Plant and Equipment, Net   1,019,594 943,951
 Goodwill     667,288 573,903
 Other Intangible Assets   95,885 73,037
 Prepaid Pension Costs     281,904
 Other Assets    191,113 223,445
  Total Assets        2,916,678 $2,981,740
  
 Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity  
 Current Liabilities  
  Payable to suppliers     $     357,856 $    265,219
  Accrued expenses and other   179,462 186,559
  Accrued wages and other compensation  63,925 44,082
  Notes payable and current portion of long-term debt 51,903 124,530
  Accrued taxes    6,678 96

        659,824 620,486
 Long-term Debt    712,089 657,075
 Pension and Other Postretirement Benefi ts   209,363 173,939
 Deferred Income Taxes   52,809 146,981
 Other Liabilities    63,525 119,945
 Commitments and Contingencies  
 Shareholders’ Equity  
  Serial preferred stock, no par value  
   Authorized 30,000 shares  
   0 shares issued and outstanding as of December 31, 2006 and 2005  
  Common shares, no par value  
   Authorized 300,000 shares  
   100,550 and 99,988 shares issued and outstanding  
    at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively 7,175 7,175
  Capital in excess of stated value   430,002 418,668
  Accumulated other comprehensive loss  (262,305) (106,389)
  Retained earnings   1,044,196 943,860

   Total Shareholders’ Equity   1,219,068 1,263,314
  Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity  $2,916,678 $2,981,740
  
The Notes beginning on page 54 are an integral part of these fi nancial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED Statements of Income
SONOCO PRODUCTS COMPANY AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

 (DOLLARS AND SHARES IN THOUSANDS EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA)   
 YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31 2006 2005 2004

 Net sales   $3,656,839 $3,528,574 $3,155,433
 Cost of sales  2,951,799 2,867,623 2,580,643
 Selling, general and administrative expenses 358,952 364,967 316,403
 Restructuring charges 25,970 21,237 18,982
 Income before interest and taxes 320,118 274,747 239,405
 Interest expense 51,952 51,559 47,463
 Interest income (6,642) (7,938) (5,400)
 Income before income taxes 274,808 231,126 197,342
 Provision for income taxes 93,329 84,174 58,858
 Income before equity in earnings of affi liates/minority interest
  in subsidiaries 181,479 146,952 138,484
 Equity in earnings of affi liates/minority interest in subsidiaries,
  net of tax  13,602 14,925 12,745
 Net income  $    195,081 $    161,877 $   151,229
   
 Weighted average common shares outstanding:   
  Basic  100,073 99,336 98,018
  Assuming exercise of awards 1,461 1,082 929
  Diluted  101,534 100,418 98,947
 Per common share
 Net income:
  Basic  $           1.95 $        1.63 $       1.54
  Diluted  $           1.92 $        1.61 $       1.53

 Cash dividends - common $             .95 $         .91 $        .87
   
The Notes beginning on page 54 are an integral part of these fi nancial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity
SONOCO PRODUCTS COMPANY AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

       ACCUMULATED 
      CAPITAL IN OTHER 
   COMPREHENSIVE COMMON SHARES EXCESS OF COMPREHENSIVE RETAINED
 (DOLLARS AND SHARES IN THOUSANDS) INCOME OUTSTANDING AMOUNT STATED VALUE LOSS EARNINGS

 January 1, 2004   96,969 $7,175 $  337,136 $  (136,091) $   805,940
 Net income   $151,229     151,229
  Other comprehensive income (loss):
   Translation gain 36,917     
   Minimum pension liability      
    adjustment, net of tax (4,479)     
   Derivative fi nancial       
    instruments, net of tax 498     
  Other comprehensive income 32,936    32,936 
 Comprehensive income $184,165     
 Cash dividends       (85,060)
 Impact of stock awards  1,531  34,463  
 Stock-based compensation    5,151  
 December 31, 2004  98,500 $7,175 $ 376,750 $ (103,155) $   872,109
 Net income   $161,877     161,877
  Other comprehensive income (loss):      
   Translation loss (12,844)     
   Minimum pension liability
    adjustment, net of tax 568     
   Derivative fi nancial       
    instruments, net of tax 9,042     
  Other comprehensive loss (3,234)    (3,234) 
 Comprehensive income $158,643     
 Cash dividends       (90,126)
 Impact of stock awards  1,488  37,370  
 Stock-based compensation    4,548  
 December 31, 2005  99,988 $7,175 $418,668 $(106,389) $  943,860
 Net income   $195,081     195,081
  Other comprehensive income (loss):      
   Translation gain 37,203     
   Minimum pension liability  
    adjustment, net of tax 1,517
   Derivative fi nancial      
    instruments, net of tax (13,240)     
  Other comprehensive income 25,480    25,480 
 Comprehensive income $220,561     
 Adjustment to initially apply FASB      
  Statement No. 158, net of tax     (181,396) 
 Cash dividends       (94,745)
 Impact of stock awards  3,062  82,655  
 Shares repurchased  (2,500)  (82,668)  
 Stock-based compensation    11,347  
 December 31, 2006  100,550 $7,175 $430,002 $(262,305) $1,044,196
  
The Notes beginning on page 54 are an integral part of these fi nancial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED Statements of Cash Flows
SONOCO PRODUCTS COMPANY AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

 (DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS)   
 YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31 2006 2005 2004
 Cash Flows from Operating Activities
 Net income    $195,081 $161,877 $151,229
 Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided
  by operating activities   
   Asset impairment 7,750 9,515 6,153
   Depreciation, depletion and amortization 164,863 163,074 163,928
   Noncash share-based compensation expense 11,347 4,554 5,144
   Equity in earnings of affi liates/minority interest   
    in subsidiaries (13,602) (14,925) (12,745)
   Cash dividends from affi liated companies 9,496 6,758 7,114
   (Gain) loss on disposition of assets (4,644) (555) 2,460
   Tax effect of nonqualifi ed stock options 10,580 2,753 3,013
   Excess tax benefi t of share-based compensation (10,580)  
   Deferred taxes (15,265) (24,722) 5,310
   Change in assets and liabilities, net of effects from acquisistions   
    dispositions, and foreign currency adjustments   
     Receivables (9,356) (24,026) (23,893)
     Inventories 33,159 (6,447) (38,395)
     Prepaid expenses (2,854) 2,298 1,272
     Payables and taxes 79,413 (15,108) 6,938
     Cash contribution to pension plans (10,471) (77,024) (33,360)
     Other assets and liabilities 37,646 39,341 8,020
 Net cash provided by operating activities 482,563 227,363 252,188
 Cash Flows from Investing Activities
 Purchase of property, plant and equipment (123,279) (129,112) (119,800)
 Cost of acquisitions, net of cash acquired (227,304) (3,566) (267,016)
 Proceeds from the sale of assets 21,030 13,377 8,638
 Investment in affi liates and other (2,500)  
 Net cash used by investing activities (332,053) (119,301) (378,178)
 Cash Flows from Financing Activities
 Proceeds from issuance of debt 33,535 43,859 206,157
 Principal repayment of debt (116,182) (11,699) (168,528)
 Net increase (decrease) in commercial paper borrowings 59,000 (150,000) 180,000
 Net (decrease) increase in bank overdrafts (9,614) 7,765 (7,976)
 Cash dividends – common (94,745) (90,126) (85,060)
 Excess tax benefi t of share-based compensation 10,580 
 Shares acquired  (82,668) 
 Common shares issued 74,413 34,617 31,450
 Net cash (used) provided by fi nancing activities (125,681) (165,584) 156,043
 Effects of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash 2,061 (595) 2,818
 Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 26,890 (58,117) 32,871
 Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 59,608 117,725 84,854
 Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $   86,498 $  59,608 $ 117,725
 Supplemental Cash Flow Disclosures   
  Interest paid, net of amounts capitalized $   41,377 $  46,650 $  41,530
  Income taxes paid, net of refunds $   99,999 $ 115,253 $  72,647
   
Prior year data has been reclassifi ed to conform to the current presentation. 
The Notes beginning on page 54 are an integral part of these fi nancial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED Financial Statements
DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS EXCEPT PER SHARE

membership interest in Hilex. The Company accounts for 
the preferred membership interest by the cost method.
 The preparation of financial statements in confor-

mity with accounting principles generally accepted 

in the United States of America (US GAAP) requires 

management to make estimates and assumptions 

that affect the reported amount of assets and liabili-

ties at the date of the financial statements and the 

reported amounts of revenues and expenses dur-

ing the reporting period. Actual results could differ 

from those estimates.

 In accordance with US GAAP, the Company 

records revenue when title and risk of ownership 

pass to the customer, and when persuasive evidence 

of an arrangement exists, delivery has occurred 

or services have been rendered, the sales price to 

the customer is fixed or determinable and when 

collectibility is reasonably assured. Certain judg-

ments, such as provisions for estimates of sales 

returns and allowances, may affect the application 

of the Company’s revenue policy and, therefore, the 

results of operations in its Consolidated Financial 

Statements. Shipping and handling expenses are 

included in “Cost of sales,” and freight charged 

to customers is included in “Net sales” in the 

Company’s Consolidated Statements of Income. 

 The Company’s trade accounts receivable are non-

interest bearing and are recorded at the invoiced 

amounts. The allowance for doubtful accounts rep-

resents the Company’s best estimate of the amount 

of probable credit losses in existing accounts receiv-

able. Provisions are made to the allowance for 

doubtful accounts at such time that collection of all 

or part of a trade account receivable is in question. 

The allowance for doubtful accounts is monitored 

on a regular basis and adjustments are made as 

needed to ensure that the account properly reflects 

the Company’s best estimate of uncollectible trade 

accounts receivable. Trade accounts receivable bal-

ances that are more than 180 days past due are 

generally 100% provided for in the allowance for 

doubtful accounts. Account balances are charged off 

against the allowance for doubtful accounts when 

the Company determines that the receivable will 

not be recovered. As a result of a business combina-
tion during 2005 of two of the Company’s customers, a 
concentration of credit representing approximately 10% of 

The following notes are an integral part of the 
Consolidated Financial Statements. The accounting prin-
ciples followed by the Company appear in bold type.

1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION
 The Consolidated Financial Statements include 

the accounts of Sonoco Products Company and 

its majority-owned subsidiaries (the “Company” 

or “Sonoco”) after elimination of intercompany 

accounts and transactions. Investments in affili-

ated companies in which the Company shares 

control over the financial and operating decisions, 

but in which the Company is not the primary ben-

eficiary are accounted for as equity investments 

(“equity investments”). Income applicable to equity 

investments is reflected as “Equity in earnings of 

affiliates/minority interest in subsidiaries” in the 

Consolidated Statements of Income. Investments 
related to equity in affi liates are included in “Other Assets” 
in the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets and totaled 
$102,851 and $115,276 at December 31, 2006 and 2005, 
respectively. 
 Investments in affi liated companies in which the 
Company is not the primary benefi ciary are accounted for 
by the equity method of accounting at December 31, 2006 
as follows:

   OWNERSHIP INTEREST
   PERCENTAGE AT
 ENTITY  DECEMBER 31, 2006

 RTS Packaging JVCO 35.0%

 Cascades Conversion, Inc. 50.0%

 Cascades Sonoco, Inc. 50.0%

 1191268 Ontario, Inc. 50.0%

 Enstel Manufacturing Inc. 50.0%

 AT-Spiral Oy 48.9%

 Showa Products Company Ltd. 20.0%

 Conitex Sonoco Holding BVI Ltd. 30.0%

 For most of 2006, the Company accounted for its 25% 
ownership interest in Demolli Industria Cartaria S.p.A 
(Demolli) by the equity method. The Company acquired 
the remaining 75% ownership interest in Demolli in 
December 2006; accordingly, it is no longer accounted for 
under the equity method. For more information, see Note 2.
 As a result of the 2003 sale of the High Density Film 
business to Hilex Poly Co., LLC (Hilex), the Company has a 
$25,200 note receivable and a $12,800 non-voting preferred 
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the consolidated trade accounts receivable existed at both 
December 31, 2006 and 2005. Sales to this customer repre-
sented approximately 12% of the Company’s consolidated 
revenues in 2006; no other single customer comprised 
more than 5% of the Company’s consolidated revenues in 
2006, 2005 or 2004.
 The Company identifies its reportable seg-

ments in accordance with Statement of Financial 

Accounting Standards No. 131, ‘Disclosures about 

Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information’, 

based on the level of detail reviewed by the chief 

operating decision maker, gross profit margins, 

nature of products sold, nature of the production 

processes, type and class of customer, methods used 

to distribute products and nature of the regulatory 

environment. Of these factors, the Company believes 
that the most signifi cant are the nature of its products, the 
nature of the production process and the type of custom-
ers served.
 Research and development costs are charged to 

expense as incurred and include salaries and other 

directly related expenses. Research and development 
costs totaling $12,735 in 2006, $14,668 in 2005, and $15,404 
in 2004, are included in “Selling, general and administra-
tive expenses” in the Company’s Consolidated Statements 
of Income.

2. ACQUISITIONS/DISPOSITIONS/JOINT VENTURES
 The Company completed six acquisitions during 2006, 
and purchased the remaining 35.5% minority interest in 
Sonoco-Alcore S.a.r.l. (Sonoco-Alcore), at an aggregate cost 
of $227,304, all of which was paid in cash. In connection 
with these acquisitions, the Company recorded fair value 
of identifi ed intangibles of approximately $27,800, good-
will of approximately $83,400 (of which approximately 
$23,500 is expected to be tax deductible), and other net 
tangible assets of approximately $116,100. Acquisitions in 
the Company’s Tubes and Cores/Paper segment included 
the remaining 75% interest in Demolli Industria Cartaria 
S.p.A, an Italy-based tube and core/paper manufacturer 
and a small tube and core manufacturer in Canada. 
Acquisitions in the Consumer Packaging segment included 
a rotogravure printed fl exible packaging manufacturer in 
Texas; a rigid paperboard composite container manufac-
turer in Ohio; and Clear Pack Company, a manufacturer of 
thermoformed and extruded plastic materials and contain-
ers in Illinois. The Company also acquired a small pack-
aging fulfi llment business in Illinois, which is included in 
the Packaging Services segment. In addition, the Company 
purchased the remaining 35.5% interest in Sonoco-Alcore, 
a European tube, core and coreboard joint venture 

explained in more detail below. As these acquisitions were 
not material to the Company’s fi nancial statements individ-
ually or in the aggregate, pro forma results have not been 
provided.
 The Company completed three acquisitions during 
2005 with an aggregate cost of $3,566 in cash. In connec-
tion with these acquisitions, the Company recorded fair 
value of identifi ed intangibles of $25, goodwill of $1,081 
and other net tangible assets of $2,460. Acquisitions in 
the Company’s Tubes and Cores/Paper segment included 
a tube and core manufacturer in New Zealand, a small 
molded plug recycler in the United States and the remain-
ing ownership interest in a Chilean tubes and cores busi-
ness. The Company also acquired certain assets of a rigid 
plastic packaging manufacturer in Brazil, which is reported 
in the Consumer Packaging segment.
 In December 2005, the Company divested its single-
plant folding cartons business for a note receivable of 
approximately $11,000, which was collected in early 2006. 
This transaction resulted in a gain of $2,417 ($1,634 after 
tax). The results of this business unit were immaterial to 
the Company’s consolidated net income, for all periods 
presented.
 The Company completed nine acquisitions during 
2004, with an aggregate cost of approximately $367,000. 
This amount included $267,016 of cash with the remainder 
consisting of the assumption of debt and the contribu-
tion of assets. In connection with these acquisitions, the 
Company recorded fair value of identifi able intangibles 
of approximately $51,000, goodwill of approximately 
$178,000 (of which approximately $152,000 is expected to 
be tax deductible) and net tangible assets of approximately 
$138,000. In May 2004, the Company acquired CorrFlex 
Graphics, LLC (CorrFlex), one of the nation’s largest point-
of-purchase display companies. The acquired business, 
which is known as Sonoco CorrFlex, LLC, is refl ected 
in the Packaging Services segment. Acquisitions in the 
Company’s Tubes and Cores/Paper segment included tube 
and core manufacturers in Australia, China and the United 
States. During the fourth quarter of 2004, the Company 
also completed a business combination with Ahlstrom 
Corporation, Helsinki, Finland (Ahlstrom), by which 
each of the companies’ respective European paper-based 
tube/core and coreboard operations were combined into a 
joint venture that operates under the name Sonoco-Alcore 
S.a.r.l. (Sonoco-Alcore) and is refl ected in the Tubes and 
Cores/Paper segment. The Company contributed owner-
ship positions in 25 tube and core plants and fi ve paper 
mills to Sonoco-Alcore, and held a 64.5% interest in the 
joint venture. Ahlstrom, a leader in high-performance 
fi ber-based materials serving niche markets worldwide, 
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contributed 14 tube and core plants and one paper mill to 
Sonoco-Alcore, and held a 35.5% interest in the joint ven-
ture. As noted above, the Company acquired this remain-
ing 35.5% interest during 2006. The Company accounted 
for this transaction as an acquisition and, therefore, consol-
idated the joint venture and reported Ahlstrom’s ownership 
as minority interest in the Company’s fi nancial statements. 
The recognition of Ahlstrom’s share of the joint venture’s 
net income was included in “Equity in earnings of affi li-
ates/minority interest in subsidiaries” on the Company’s 
Consolidated Statements of Income until acquisition of 
the remaining minority interest was completed in 2006. 
Acquisitions in the Company’s Consumer Packaging seg-
ment included a composite can manufacturer in Australia, 
a manufacturer of rotogravure cylinders in Canada and the 
remaining ownership interest in a manufacturer of roto-
gravure cylinders in Charlotte, N.C. The Company also 
acquired certain assets of a wooden reel refurbisher in 
Alabama, which are reported in All Other Sonoco.

3. RESTRUCTURING PROGRAMS
 The Company accounts for restructuring 

charges in accordance with Statement of Financial 

Accounting Standards No. 146, ‘Accounting for Costs 

Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities’ (FAS 

146), whereby the liability is recognized when exit 

costs are incurred. If assets become impaired as a result 
of a restructuring action, the assets are written down to 
the lower of carrying amount or fair value, less estimated 
costs to sell, if applicable. A number of signifi cant esti-
mates and assumptions are involved in the determination 
of fair value. The Company considers historical experi-
ence and all available information at the time the estimates 
are made; however, the fair values that are ultimately 
realized upon the sale of the divested assets may differ 
from the estimated fair values refl ected in the Company’s 
Consolidated Financial Statements.
 The Company approved a restructuring plan in 
October 2006 (the 2006 Plan), and another in August 2003 
(the 2003 Plan). The Company recognized restructur-
ing charges, net of adjustments, totaling $25,970 ($21,330 
after tax) in 2006, $21,237 ($14,343 after tax) in 2005, 
and $18,982 ($16,154 after tax) in 2004 under these two 
plans. Restructuring charges are included in “Restructuring 
charges” in the Consolidated Statements of Income, except 
for the restructuring charges applicable to equity method 
investments, which are included in earnings of affi liates/
minority interest in subsidiaries.” Additional disclosures 
concerning each of the plans are provided below.

THE 2006 PLAN
 The 2006 Plan calls for the closure of approximately 
12 plant locations and the reduction of approximately 540 
positions worldwide. The majority of the restructuring 
program will focus on international operations, principally 
centered around Europe, in order to make those opera-
tions more cost effective. These measures began in the 
fourth quarter of 2006 and are expected to be substantially 
completed by the end of 2007.
 The total cost of the 2006 Plan is estimated to be 
approximately $35,000, most of which is related to sev-
erance and other termination costs. Accordingly, the 
vast majority of the total restructuring cost will result in 
the expenditure of cash. As of December 31, 2006, the 
Company had incurred total charges of $17,498 associated 
with these activities. The following table provides addi-
tional details of these charges:

 SEVERANCE ASSETS 
 AND IMPAIRMENT/ OTHER
 TERMINATION DISPOSAL EXIT
 BENEFITS OF ASSET COSTS TOTAL

 2006     

 Tubes and Cores/

  Paper Segment $8,465 $4,620 $2,130 $15,215

 Consumer

  Packaging Segment 1,057 309 156 1,522

 Packaging

  Services Segment 77   77

 All Other Sonoco 375 261 48 684

 Total $  9,974 $ 5,190 $2,334 $17,498

 The charges for 2006 relate primarily to the closures of 
a paper mill in France, two tube and core plants—one in 
Canada and one in the United States, and a fl exible pack-
aging operation in Canada. The charges also include the 
closures of a wooden reels facility and a molded plastics 
operation in the United States as well as the impact of 
downsizing actions primarily in the Company’s European 
tube and core/paper operations.
 The Company expects to recognize future additional 
costs totaling approximately $17,500 associated with the 
2006 Plan. These charges are expected to consist primar-
ily of severance and termination benefi ts. Of these future 
costs, it is estimated that $10,400 will impact the Tubes and 
Cores/Paper segment, $6,000 will impact the Consumer 
Packaging segment, $600 will impact the Packaging 
Services segment, and $500 will impact All Other Sonoco.
 The following table sets forth the activity in the 2006 
Plan restructuring accrual included in “Accrued expenses 
and other” on the Company’s Consolidated Balance 
Sheets:
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 SEVERANCE ASSETS
 AND IMPAIRMENT/ OTHER
 TERMINATION DISPOSAL EXIT
 BENEFITS OF ASSET COSTS TOTAL

 Tubes and Cores/

  Paper Segment $36,934 $  18,074 $17,579 $   72,587

 Consumer

 Packaging Segment 11,195 5,084 5,186 21,465

 Packaging

  Services Segment 333   333

 All Other Sonoco 2,999 326 92 3,417

 Corporate 5,094  113 5,207

 Cumulative

  Restructuring

  Charges, net of

  adjustments $ 56,555 $23,484 $22,970 $103,009

 The Company expects to recognize future additional 
costs totaling approximately $300 associated with these 
activities. These costs are expected to be comprised 
of other exit costs within the Tubes and Cores/Paper 
segment. 
 The Company recognized restructuring charges related 
to the 2003 Plan, net of adjustments, of $8,472 in 2006, 
$21,237 in 2005 and $18,982 in 2004. The following table 
provides additional details of these net charges:

 SEVERANCE ASSETS 
 AND IMPAIRMENT/ OTHER
 TERMINATION DISPOSAL EXIT
 BENEFITS OF ASSET COSTS TOTAL

 2006  

 Tubes and Cores/

  Paper Segment $  952 $2,062 $5,164 $8,178

 Consumer

  Packaging Segment 861 498 (968) 391

 All Other Sonoco 3  (100) (97)

 Total $1,816 $2,560 $4,096 $8,472

2005 
 Tubes and Cores/

  Paper Segment $4,834 $4,999 $6,194 $16,027

 Consumer

  Packaging Segment 733 1,557 2,321 4,611

 All Other Sonoco 640 (41)  599

 Total $6,207 $6,515 $8,515 $21,237

2004

 Tubes and Cores/

  Paper Segment $7,021 $4,459 $3,254 $14,734

 Consumer

  Packaging Segment 1,513 1,327 2,439 5,279

 All Other Sonoco 559 367 92 1,018

 Corporate (2,548)  499 (2,049)

 Total $6,545 $6,153 $6,284 $18,982

  
 SEVERANCE ASSETS
 AND IMPAIRMENT/ OTHER
 TERMINATION DISPOSAL EXIT
  BENEFITS OF ASSET COSTS TOTAL

 Liability,

  December 31, 2005

 2006 Charges $   9,974 $5,190 $2,334 $17,498

 Cash payments (1,302)  (649) (1,951)

 Asset impairment

  (noncash)  (5,247)  (5,247)

 Reclassifi cations to

  pension liability (438)   (438)

 Foreign currency

  translation 30 57  87

 Liability, 

  December 31, 2006 $8,264 $ $1,685  $  9,949

 Other exit costs consist primarily of building lease ter-
mination charges and other miscellaneous exit costs. 
 The majority of the liability and the remaining 2006 
Plan restructuring costs, with the exception of ongoing 
pension subsidies and certain building lease termination 
expenses, are expected to be paid by the end of 2007, 
using cash generated from operations. 
 During 2006, the Company recognized impairment 
losses on equipment and facilities held for disposal of 
$4,681 in the Tubes and Cores/Paper segment, $305 in 
the Consumer Packaging segment and $261 in All Other 
Sonoco. Writeoffs in the Tubes and Cores/Paper segment 
related primarily to the closure of a paper mill in France. 
Impaired assets were written down to the lower of car-
rying amount or fair value, less estimated costs to sell, if 
applicable.

THE 2003 PLAN
 In August 2003, the Company announced general 
plans to reduce its overall annual operating cost struc-
ture by approximately $54,000 by realigning and central-
izing a number of staff functions and eliminating excess 
plant capacity. Pursuant to these plans, the Company has 
initiated or completed 22 plant closings and has reduced 
its workforce by approximately 1,120 employees. As of 
December 31, 2006, the Company had incurred cumulative 
charges, net of adjustments, of $103,009 associated with 
these activities. The following table provides additional 
details of these net charges:
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 The net charges incurred in 2006 under the 2003 Plan 
relate primarily to the closure of two tube and core plants 
and a fl exible packaging operation in the United States, 
and an additional asset impairment charge resulting from 
a revision to the estimated sales proceeds of a previously 
closed paper mill located in the United States. 
 The net charges incurred in 2005 relate primarily to the 
closure of tube and core plants in the United States and 
Europe, fl exible packaging plants in the United States and 
Canada, and a paper mill in the United States. 
 The net charges incurred in 2004 relate primarily to 
the closure of a fl exible packaging plant in Canada, and 
a tube and core plant, a paper mill and a molded plastics 
plant in the United States. The consolidation of plants in 
the Company’s European operations also contributed to 
the restructuring charges recognized during 2004. Included 
in this amount are $2,200 of restructuring charges result-
ing from a correction to previously reported fi nancial 
statements at the Company’s wholly owned subsidiary in 
Spain. Restructuring charges associated with plants contrib-
uted to Sonoco-Alcore by Ahlstrom were recorded as an 
increase in goodwill in accordance with Emerging Issues 
Task Force Issue No. 95-3, ‘Recognition of Liabilities in 
Connection with a Business Combination’ (EITF 95-3). The 
Corporate credit is an adjustment to severance accrued 
when the plan was originally announced in 2003. 
 The Company also recorded noncash income in the 
amount of $416, $1,260 and $1,778 after tax, in 2006, 
2005 and 2004, respectively, in order to refl ect a minor-
ity shareholder’s portion of restructuring costs that were 
charged to expense. This income, which resulted from the 
closure of certain plants that the Company contributed to 
Sonoco-Alcore, is included in “Equity in earnings of affi li-
ates/minority interest in subsidiaries” in the Company’s 
Consolidated Statements of Income.
 The following table sets forth the activity in the 2003 
Plan restructuring accrual included in “Accrued expenses 
and other” in the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets:    

 SEVERANCE ASSETS
 AND IMPAIRMENT/ OTHER
 TERMINATION DISPOSAL EXIT
 BENEFITS OF ASSET COSTS TOTAL

 Liability,

  December 31, 2003 $14,708 $ $6,386 $21,094

 2004 Charges 9,815 5,894 5,970 21,679

 Cash payments (16,595)  (5,642) (22,237)

 Asset impairment/

  pension curtailment

  (noncash)  (6,153) (1,926) (8,079)

 Foreign currency

  translation 2,016  66 2,082

 Adjustments (3,270) 259 314 (2,697)

 Liability,

  December 31, 2004 6,674  5,168 11,842

 2005 Charges 6,232 7,099 8,992 22,323

 Cash payments (8,600)  (7,329) (15,929)

 Asset impairment

  (noncash)  (6,515)  (6,515)

 Foreign currency

  translation (859)  140 (719)

 Adjustments (538) (584) 36 (1,086)

 Liability,

  December 31, 2005 2,909  7,007 9,916

 2006 Charges 2,101 2,672 6,009 10,782

 Cash payments (4,272)  (7,089) (11,361)

 Asset impairment

  (noncash)  (2,560)  (2,560)

 Foreign currency

  translation 114  98 212

 Adjustments (285) (112) (1,913) (2,310)

 Liability,

  December 31, 2006 $    567 $ $  4,112 $   4,679

 Other exit costs consist primarily of building lease 
termination charges and other miscellaneous exit costs. 
Adjustments consist primarily of revisions to estimates of 
building lease termination charges and pension subsidies.
 The majority of the liability and the remaining 2003 
Plan restructuring costs, with the exception of ongoing 
pension subsidies and certain building lease termination 
expenses, are expected to be paid by the end of 2007, 
using cash generated from operations. 
 During 2006, under the 2003 Plan, the Company recog-
nized impairment losses on equipment and facilities held 
for disposal in the Tubes and Cores/Paper segment in the 
amount of $2,062 and in the Consumer Packaging segment 
in the amount of $498. Writeoffs in the Tubes and Cores/
Paper segment related primarily to the closure of a paper 
mill in the United States. Writeoffs of impaired equipment 
and facilities in the Consumer Packaging segment related 
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primarily to the closure of two fl exible packaging plants. 
Impaired assets were written down to the lower of car-
rying amount or fair value, less estimated costs to sell, if 
applicable.
 During 2005, under the 2003 Plan, the Company recog-
nized writeoffs of impaired equipment and facilities held 
for disposal in the Tubes and Cores/Paper segment in the 
amount of $4,312, in the Consumer Packaging segment 
in the amount of $1,367 and in All Other Sonoco in the 
amount of $(41). Also, during 2005, the Company recog-
nized writeoffs of inventory in the Tubes and Cores/Paper 
segment in the amount of $687, and in the Consumer 
Packaging segment in the amount of $190. Writeoffs of 
impaired equipment, facilities and inventory in the Tubes 
and Cores/Paper segment related primarily to the closure 
of tube and core plants and a paper mill in the United 
States. Writeoffs of impaired equipment, facilities and 
inventory in the Consumer Packaging segment related 
primarily to the closure of two fl exible packaging plants. 
Impaired assets were written down to the lower of car-
rying amount or fair value, less estimated costs to sell, if 
applicable.
 During 2004, the Tubes and Cores/Paper segment rec-
ognized writeoffs of impaired equipment and facilities held 
for disposal of $4,459, attributed to the closing of six plant 
locations under the 2003 Plan. Additionally, the Consumer 
Packaging segment recognized writeoffs of impaired 
equipment and facilities held for disposal of $1,327 and 
pension curtailment of $1,926, related to the closing of 
two plant locations. Finally, during 2004, All Other Sonoco 
recognized writeoffs of impaired equipment and facilities 
held for disposal of $367, attributed to the closing of one 
plant location. Impaired assets were written down to the 
lower of carrying amount or fair value, less estimated costs 
to sell, if applicable.

4. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
 Cash equivalents are composed of highly liquid invest-
ments with an original maturity of three months or less. 
Cash equivalents are recorded at cost, which approxi-
mates market. At December 31, 2006 and 2005, outstand-
ing checks totaling $12,847 and $22,406, respectively, 
were included in “Payable to suppliers” on the Company’s 
Consolidated Balance Sheets. In addition, outstanding pay-
roll checks of $1,106 and $1,161 as of December 31, 2006 
and 2005, respectively, were included in “Accrued wages 
and other compensation” on the Company’s Consolidated 
Balance Sheets.

5. INVENTORIES
 Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or 

market. The last-in, fi rst-out (LIFO) method was used to 
determine costs of approximately 21% and 23% of total 
inventories at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. 
The remaining inventories are determined on the fi rst-in, 
fi rst-out (FIFO) method.
 If the FIFO method of accounting had been used for 
all inventories, total inventory would have been higher 
by $14,602 and $11,568 at December 31, 2006 and 2005, 
respectively.

6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
 Plant assets represent the original cost of land, 

buildings and equipment, less depreciation, com-

puted under the straight-line method over the esti-

mated useful lives of the assets, and are reviewed 

for impairment whenever events indicate the carry-

ing value may not be recoverable.

 Equipment lives generally range from three to 11 

years, and buildings from 15 to 40 years. 

 Timber resources are stated at cost. Depletion is 

charged to operations based on the estimated num-

ber of units of timber cut during the year. 

 Details at December 31 are as follows:

   2006 2005

 Land $     66,161 $     46,541

 Timber resources 38,503 38,224

 Buildings 421,291 388,414

 Machinery and equipment 2,130,006 1,995,737

 Construction in progress 76,063 68,886

   2,732,024 2,537,802

 Accumulated depreciation

  and depletion (1,712,430) (1,593,851)

 Property, plant and

  equipment, net $1,019,594 $  943,951

 Estimated costs for completion of capital additions 
under construction totaled approximately $73,500 at 
December 31, 2006.
 Depreciation and depletion expense amounted to 
$157,000 in 2006, $155,412 in 2005 and $158,212 in 2004.
 The Company has certain properties and equipment 
that are leased under noncancelable operating leases. 
Future minimum rentals under noncancelable operating 
leases with terms of more than one year are as follows:  
2007 – $28,900; 2008 – $23,300; 2009 – $19,900; 2010 
– $14,500; 2011– $11,300 and thereafter – $37,800. Total 
rental expense under operating leases was approximately 
$42,200 in 2006, $41,900 in 2005 and $35,600 in 2004. 
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7. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS
GOODWILL

The Company accounts for goodwill in accor-

dance with Statement of Financial Accounting 

Standards No. 142 ‘Goodwill and Other Intangible 

Assets’ (FAS 142). Under FAS 142, purchased good-

will and intangible assets with indefinite lives are 

not amortized. The Company evaluates its good-

will for impairment at least annually, and more 

frequently if indicators of impairment are present. 
In performing the impairment test, the Company uses 
discounted future cash fl ows to determine fair value of 
assets of each reporting unit, which is then compared to 
the carrying value of these assets. If, after completing this 
test, certain reporting units are deemed impaired, further 
analysis is completed to calculate the impairment charge 
required. 
 The Company completed its annual goodwill impair-
ment testing during the third quarters of 2006, 2005 and 
2004. Based on this impairment testing, no adjustment to 
the recorded goodwill balance was necessary. The evalu-
ation of goodwill impairment that was completed during 
the third quarter of 2006 used forward-looking projections, 
which included expected improvement in results at certain 
reporting units, most notably, the European operations 
within the Tubes and Cores/Paper segment. The assess-
ment of the relevant facts and circumstances is ongoing, 
and if actual performance in this reporting unit falls signifi -
cantly short of projected results, it is reasonably possible 
that a noncash impairment charge would be required.
 The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for the 
year ended December 31, 2006, are as follows:

   TUBES AND
   CORES/ CONSUMER  PACKAGING ALL
   PAPER  PACKAGING  SERVICES  OTHER
   SEGMENT SEGMENT SEGMENT SONOCO TOTAL

 Balance as of

 January 1, 2006 $189,635 $170,383 $148,125 $65,760 $573,903

 Goodwill on

  2006 acquisitions 28,369 52,376 2,678  83,423

 Other adjustments (249)    (249)

 Foreign currency

  translation 8,202 1,898 170 (59) 10,211

 Balance as of

 December 31, 2006 $225,957 $224,657 $150,973 $65,701 $667,288

 Adjustments to goodwill consist primarily of changes to 
deferred tax valuation allowances acquired in connection 
with acquisitions made in prior years.

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS
 Intangible assets are amortized, usually on a 

straight-line basis, over their respective useful lives, 

which generally range from three to 15 years. The 

Company evaluates its intangible assets for impair-

ment whenever indicators of impairment exist. The 
Company has no intangibles with indefi nite lives.

   2006 2005

 Amortizable intangibles – Gross cost  

  Patents $    3,360 $   3,378

  Customer lists 108,741 81,026

  Land use rights 6,855 6,011

  Supply agreements 1,000 5,261

  Other 8,302 6,703

 Total gross cost $128,258 $102,379

 Accumulated amortization  

  Patents $   (3,255) $     (3,110)

  Customer lists (20,651) (14,690)

  Land use rights (2,797) (2,148)

  Supply agreements (550) (4,619)

  Other (5,120) (4,775)

 Total accumulated amortization $  (32,373) $(29,342)

 Net amortizable intangibles $   95,885 $   73,037

 Aggregate amortization expense on intangible assets 
was $7,863, $7,662 and $5,716 for the years ended 
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. 
Amortization expense on intangible assets is expected to 
approximate $9,473 in 2007, $9,093 in 2008, $8,180 in 2009, 
$7,754 in 2010 and $7,692 in 2011.
 The Company recorded $27,751 of identifi able intan-
gibles in connection with 2006 acquisitions. Of this total, 
approximately $25,609 related to customer lists that are 
being amortized over periods ranging from 5 to 20 years. 
The remaining $2,142 consists of other identifi able intan-
gibles, primarily non-compete agreements. These agree-
ments are amortized over their respective lives – generally 
three to fi ve years. 
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8. DEBT
 Debt at December 31 was as follows:

   2006 2005

 Commercial paper, average rate of

  5.01% in 2006 and 3.26% in 2005 $   89,000 $ 30,000

 6.75% debentures due November 2010  99,926 99,912

 6.5% debentures due November 2013  249,208 249,092

 5.625% debentures due November 2016  149,322 149,250

 9.2% debentures due August 2021  41,305 41,305

 6.125% Industrial Revenue Bonds

  (IRBs) due June 2025 34,697 34,674

 6.0% IRBs due April 2026 34,392 34,360

 Foreign denominated debt, average

  rate of 7.6% in 2006 and 8.3% in 2005   50,576 124,937

 Other notes 15,566 18,075

 Total debt 763,992 781,605

 Less current portion and short-term notes  51,903 124,530

 Long-term debt $712,089 $657,075

 The Company currently operates a commercial paper 
program totaling $350,000, and has fully committed bank 
lines of credit supporting the program by a like amount. 
On May 3, 2006, the Company entered into an amended 
and restated credit agreement to extend its $350,000 bank 
line of credit to a new fi ve-year maturity. The amended 
and restated credit agreement also provides the Company 
the option to increase its credit line to $500,000 subject to 
the concurrence of its lenders. The Company intends to 
indefi nitely maintain line of credit agreements fully sup-
porting its commercial paper program. The amount of the 
Company’s outstanding commercial paper at December 
31, 2006 and 2005, was $89,000 and $30,000, respec-
tively. Consistent with the maturity of the supporting line 
of credit, the Company classifi es outstanding commercial 
paper balances as long-term debt.
 In addition, at December 31, 2006, the Company had 
$254,000 available under unused short-term lines of credit. 
These short-term lines of credit are for general Company 
purposes, with interest at mutually agreed-upon rates.
 Certain of the Company’s debt agreements impose restric-
tions with respect to the maintenance of fi nancial ratios and 
the disposition of assets. The most restrictive covenant cur-
rently requires that net worth, as defi ned, at the end of each 
fi scal quarter be greater than $1,164,248, increased by 25% 
of net income after December 31, 2005, and decreased by 
stock purchases after May 3, 2006. This covenant excludes 
from the above net worth calculation any accumulated other 
comprehensive income or loss. As of December 31, 2006, 
the Company was approximately $261,858 above the mini-
mum level required under this covenant. 

 The 6.125% IRBs and the 6.0% IRBs are collateralized 
by property, plant and equipment at several locations.
 The approximate principal requirements of debt matur-
ing in the next fi ve years are: 2007 – $51,903; 2008 – $404; 
2009 – $200; 2010 – $99,989 and 2011 – $19.

9. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
 The following table sets forth the carrying amounts and 
fair values of the Company’s signifi cant fi nancial instru-
ments where the carrying amount differs from the fair 
value. 

   DECEMBER 31, 2006 DECEMBER 31, 2005
   CARRYING  FAIR  CARRYING  FAIR
   AMOUNT OF  VALUE OF  AMOUNT OF  VALUE OF
   LIABILITY  LIABILITY LIABILITY LIABILITY1

Long-term debt $712,089 $732,377 $657,075 $705,989

1 The fair value of long-term debt at December 31, 2005, does not include 
the impact of interest-rate swaps. The fair value of long-term debt is 
$692,489, when the impact of interest-rate swaps is included.

 The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents, 
short-term debt and long-term variable-rate debt approxi-
mates fair value. The fair value of long-term debt is based 
on quoted market prices or is determined by discount-
ing future cash fl ows using interest rates available to 
the Company for issues with similar terms and average 
maturities.
 The Company records qualifying derivatives 

based on Statement of Financial Accounting 

Standards No. 133, ‘Accounting for Derivative 

Instruments and Hedging Activities’ (FAS 133), and 

related amendments. This Statement requires that 

all derivatives be recognized as assets or liabilities 

in the balance sheet and measured at fair value. 

Changes in the fair value of derivatives are recog-

nized in either net income or in other comprehensive 

income, depending on the designated purpose of the 

derivative. 

 The Company uses derivatives from time to time to miti-
gate the effect of raw material and energy cost fl uctuations, 
foreign currency fl uctuations and interest rate movements. 
The Company purchases commodities such as recovered 
paper, metal and energy generally at market or fi xed prices 
that are established with the vendor as part of the pur-
chase process for quantities expected to be consumed in 
the ordinary course of business. The Company may enter 
into commodity futures or swaps to reduce the effect of 
price fl uctuation. The Company may use foreign currency 
forward contracts and other risk management instruments 
to manage exposure to changes in foreign currency cash 
fl ows and the translation of monetary assets and liabilities 
on the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements. The 
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Company is exposed to interest-rate fl uctuations as a result 
of using debt as a source of fi nancing for its operations. 
The Company may use traditional, unleveraged interest 
rate swaps to adjust its mix of fi xed and variable rate debt 
to manage its exposure to interest rate movements. The 
Company uses published market prices or estimated values 
based on current price quotes and a discounted cash fl ow 
model to estimate the fair market value of derivatives.
 All interest rate swaps qualifi ed as fair-value hedges, 
under which fi xed interest rates are swapped for fl oat-
ing rates. During 2004, the Company entered into agree-
ments to swap the interest rate from fi xed to fl oating on 
$100,000 of its $250,000 6.5% notes maturing in 2013, and 
all $150,000 of its 5.625% notes maturing in 2016. The fair 
market value of these interest rate swaps was an unfavor-
able position of $1,098 and a favorable position of $4,483, 
respectively, at December 31, 2005, and was refl ected as 
“Other Liabilities” and “Other Assets,” respectively, in the 
Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheet. During 2006, 
the Company terminated both interest rate swaps. At the 
time of termination, the fair value of the interest rate swap 
related to the 6.5% notes was an unfavorable position of 
$3,018, and the fair value of the interest rate swap related 
to the 5.625% notes was a favorable position of $881. 
In accordance with FAS 133, interest expense is being 
adjusted by amortization of the gain and loss associated 
with these swap terminations over the remaining life of 
the related bonds. Termination of these swaps increased 
the Company’s proportion of fi xed rate debt, reducing 
its exposure to the effects of interest rate changes. The 
Company did not enter into any new fair value hedges 
during the year ended December 31, 2006. 
 The Company has entered into certain cash fl ow hedges 
to mitigate exposure to commodity, energy and foreign 
exchange risks. Related hedge gains and/or losses are 
reclassifi ed from accumulated other comprehensive income 
and into earnings in the same periods that the forecast 
purchases or payments affect earnings. The only signifi cant 
open hedge positions relate to the Company’s forecasted 
purchase of natural gas. At December 31, 2006, natural 
gas swaps, covering approximately eight million MMBTUs, 
were outstanding. The hedged natural gas quantities at this 
date represent approximately 75%, 56%, 31%, and 6% of 
anticipated U.S. and Canadian usage for 2007, 2008, 2009 
and 2010, respectively. The total fair market value of the 
Company’s cash-fl ow hedge derivatives as of December 
31, 2006, was a net loss of $2,059 on a tax-adjusted basis. 
Of this amount, a gain of $244 is expected to be reclas-
sifi ed to earnings in 2007. As a result of the high correla-
tion between the derivative instruments and the associated 
hedged transactions, ineffectiveness did not have a mate-

rial impact on the Company’s Consolidated Statements of 
Income for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 
2004.

10. STOCK-BASED PLANS
 The Company utilizes various forms of share-based 
compensation within its stock-based programs which are 
summarized below. Awards are provided in the form of 
stock options, stock appreciation rights and restricted stock 
units. The majority of these awards are issued pursu-
ant to the Company’s 1991 Key Employee Stock Plan (the 
“Employee Stock Plan”) and 1996 Non-Employee Directors’ 
Stock Plan (the “Directors’ Plan”). The Company’s non-
employee director stock-based awards have not been 
material. At December 31, 2006, a total of 3,552,064 shares 
remain available for future grant under these plans. The 
Company issues new shares for stock option and stock 
appreciation right exercises and stock unit conversions. 
The Company has from time to time repurchased shares to 
replace those issued under its stock compensation plans, 
however, there is no specifi c schedule or policy to do so.
 Total compensation cost for share-based payment 
arrangements was $11,347, $4,554, and $5,144, for 2006, 
2005, and 2004, respectively. The related tax benefi t rec-
ognized in net income was $3,699, $1,475, and $1,714, for 
the same years, respectively. Share-based compensation 
expense is included in selling, general and administrative 
expense on the Condensed Consolidated Statements of 
Income. 

ACCOUNTING FOR SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION
 Effective January 1, 2006, the Company adopted the fair 
value method of accounting for share-based compensation 
arrangements in accordance with Statement of Financial 
Accounting Standards No. 123 (revised 2004), ‘Share-
Based Payment’ (FAS 123(R)), using the modifi ed prospec-
tive method of transition. Under the modifi ed prospective 
method, compensation expense is recognized beginning at 
the effective date of adoption of FAS 123(R) for all share-
based payments (i) granted after the effective date of adop-
tion and (ii) granted prior to the effective date of adoption 
and that remain unvested on the date of adoption. At the 
date of adoption, the Company had an estimated 436,301 
unvested restricted stock units and performance contingent 
restricted stock units outstanding, with a total grant date 
fair value of approximately $10,000, and no unvested stock 
options outstanding. The Company recognizes share-based 
compensation cost ratably over the expected vesting period.
 Prior to January 1, 2006, the Company accounted for 
share-based employee compensation plans using the 
intrinsic value method of accounting in accordance with 
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Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, ‘Accounting 
for Stock Issued to Employees’ (APB 25), and its related 
interpretations. Under the provisions of APB 25, no com-
pensation expense was recognized when stock options 
were granted with exercise prices equal to or greater than 
market value on the date of grant. 
 When the tax deduction for an exercised stock option, 
exercised stock appreciation right or converted stock unit 
exceeds the compensation cost that has been recognized 
in income, an “excess” tax benefi t is created. The excess 
benefi t is not recognized on the income statement, but 
rather on the balance sheet as additional paid-in capital. 
The additional excess tax benefi t realized during 2006 was 
$10,580. Prior to the adoption of FAS 123(R), the Company 
presented all tax benefi ts resulting from share-based com-
pensation as cash fl ows from operating activities in the 
condensed consolidated statements of cash fl ows. FAS 
123(R) requires cash fl ows resulting from tax deductions in 
excess of the grant-date fair value of share-based awards 
to be included in cash fl ows from fi nancing activities. The 
excess tax benefi t of $10,580 recognized during 2006 has 
been included in cash fl ows from fi nancing activities. In 
accordance with the adoption of FAS 123(R), the Company 
chose to adopt the short-cut method to determine the 
pool of windfall tax benefi ts as it relates to stock-based 
compensation.
 The Company’s Condensed Consolidated Financial 
Statements as of December 31, 2006, refl ect the impact of 
its adoption of FAS 123(R). The effect of the change from 
applying the original provisions of FAS 123 is outlined in 
the table below:

   YEAR ENDED
   DECEMBER 31, 2006
   INCREASE/(DECREASE)

 Income before income taxes $  (4,148)

 Net income (2,796)

 Cash fl ow provided by operating activities (10,580)

 Cash fl ow used in fi nancing activities 10,580

 Earnings per share: 

  Basic (.03)

  Diluted (.03)

 For purposes of calculating share-based compensation 
expense under FAS 123(R) for retiree-eligible employees, 
the service completion date is assumed to be the grant 
date; therefore, expense associated with share-based com-
pensation to these employees is recognized at that time. 
The annual impact of recognizing this expense immedi-
ately versus over the nominal vesting period is not material 
because the Company’s employee stock options and stock 
appreciation rights have one-year vesting periods.

 Under the modifi ed prospective method of transi-
tion, the Company is not required to restate its prior 
period fi nancial statements. The following table illustrates 
the effect on net income and earnings per share if the 
Company had applied the fair value recognition provisions 
of FAS 123 to stock-based employee compensation for the 
years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004:

   YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,
   2005 2004

 Net income, as reported $161,877 $ 151,229

 Add: Stock-based employee 

  compensation cost, net of related tax

  effects, included in net income,

  as reported 3,078  3,430

 Deduct: Total stock-based employee

  compensation expense determined

  under fair value based method for all 

  awards, net of related tax effects (7,534) (6,449)

 Pro forma net income $ 157,421 $148,210

 Earnings per share:  

  Basic – as reported $1.63 $1.54 

  Basic – pro forma $1.58 $1.51

  Diluted – as reported $1.61 $1.53

  Diluted – pro forma $1.57 $1.50

STOCK OPTIONS AND STOCK
APPRECIATION RIGHTS (SARS)
 The Company typically grants stock options or stock 
appreciation rights annually on a discretionary basis to its 
key employees. Prior to 2006, the Company also granted 
stock options to its non-employee directors. Options 
granted under the Employee Stock Plan and the Directors’ 
Plan were at market (had an exercise price equal to the 
closing market price on the date of grant), had 10-year 
terms and vested over one year, except for the options 
granted in 2005, which vested immediately. In 2006, the 
Company began to grant stock appreciation rights (SARs) 
instead of stock options. SARs are at market, vest over one 
year, have seven-year terms and can be settled only in 
stock. Both stock options and SARs are exercisable upon 
vesting.
 On January 31, 2006, the Company granted to employ-
ees 754,683 stock-settled SARs. An additional 14,500 SARs 
were granted over the remainder of the year. All SARs were 
granted at the closing market prices on the dates of grant. 
As of December 31, 2006, there was $270 of total unrecog-
nized compensation cost related to nonvested SARs. This 
cost will be recognized over the remaining weighted-aver-
age vesting period, which is approximately one month.
 The weighted-average fair values of options and SARs 
granted was $5.85, $5.42 and $4.97 in 2006, 2005 and 



SONOCO 2006 SONOCO 2006 SONOCO 2006 SONOCO 2006 

64

2004, respectively. The Company computed the estimated 
fair values of all options and SARs using the binomial 
option-pricing model applying the assumptions set forth in 
the following table: 

   2006 2005 2004

 Expected dividend yield 2.8% 3.5% 3.6%

 Expected stock price volatility 20.8% 26.2% 27.4%

 Risk-free interest rate 4.5% 3.7% 3.2%

 Expected life of options 4 years 4.5 years 4.5 years

 The assumptions employed in the calculation of the fair 
value of stock options and SARs were determined as follows:

• Expected dividend yield – the Company’s annual divi-
dend divided by the stock price at the time of grant.
• Expected stock price volatility – based on historical 
volatility of the Company’s common stock measured 
weekly for a time period equal to the expected life.
• Risk-free interest rate – based on U.S. Treasury yields 
in effect at the time of grant for maturities equal to the 
expected life.
• Expected life – calculated using the simplifi ed 
method as prescribed in Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 
107, where the expected life is equal to the sum of the 
vesting period and the contractual term divided by two.

 The following tables summarize information about 
stock options and SARs outstanding and exercisable at 
December 31, 2006:

 OPTIONS AND SARS VESTED
 AND EXPECTED TO VEST

   WEIGHTED-
   AVERAGE WEIGHTED-
 RANGE OF  REMAINING  AVERAGE AGGREGATE
 EXERCISE NUMBER CONTRACTURAL EXERCISE INTRINSIC
 PRICES OUTSTANDING LIFE PRICE VALUE

 $17.25 - $23.80 2,237,476 4.7 years $22.06 $35,806

 $23.86 - $27.31 2,503,905 6.3 years $25.45 $ 31,569

 $27.35 - $37.10 2,343,505 4.1 years $31.79 $  15,529

 $17.25 - $37.10 7,084,886 5.1 years $26.48 $82,904

 OPTIONS AND SARS EXERCISABLE

   WEIGHTED-
   AVERAGE WEIGHTED-
 RANGE OF  REMAINING  AVERAGE AGGREGATE
 EXERCISE NUMBER CONTRACTURAL EXERCISE INTRINSIC
 PRICES OUTSTANDING LIFE PRICE VALUE

 $17.25 - $23.80 2,237,194 4.7 years $22.06 $35,806

 $23.86 - $27.31 2,503,905  6.3 years $25.45 $31,569

 $27.35 - $37.10 1,611,405 1.9 years $31.07 $11,252

 $17.25 - $37.10 6,352,504 5.3 years $25.68 $78,627

 The activity related to the Company’s stock options and 
SARs is as follows:

      WEIGHTED-
      AVERAGE 
      EXERCISE
   NONVESTED VESTED TOTAL PRICE

 Outstanding,

  December 31, 2005  9,373,305 9,373,305 $25.33

 Granted 730,089  39,094  769,183 $33.34

 Exercised   (3,030,365) (3,030,365) $24.68

 Forfeited  (27,237) (27,237) $25.02

 Outstanding,

  December 31, 2006 730,089 6,354,797 7,084,886 $26.48

 The aggregate intrinsic value of options and SARs exer-
cised during the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, 
and 2004 was $27,827, $7,635, and $8,153, respectively. 
Cash received on option exercises was $74,413, $34,617, 
and $31,450 for the same years, respectively.

PERFORMANCE-BASED STOCK AWARDS
 The Company typically grants performance contingent 
restricted stock units (PCSUs) annually on a discretionary 
basis to certain of its executives and other members of its 
management team. Both the ultimate number of PCSUs 
awarded and the vesting period are dependent upon the 
degree to which performance targets are achieved for 
three-year performance periods. Upon vesting, PCSUs are 
convertible into common shares on a one-for-one basis. 
These awards are granted under the Employee Stock Plan 
and vest over fi ve years with accelerated vesting over three 
years if performance targets are met. For the awards out-
standing at December 31, 2006, the ultimate number of 
PCSUs that could vest ranges from 185,730 to 557,190 and is 
tied to growth in earnings and improved capital effective-
ness over a three-year period. The 2005 awards are tied 
to performance targets over the three-year period ending 
December 31, 2007, and can range from 86,450 to 259,350 
units. The 2006 awards are tied to performance targets 
through fi scal year 2008, and can range from 99,280 to 
297,840 units. 
 The three-year performance cycle for the 2004 awards 
was completed on December 31, 2006. Based on meeting 
performance goals established at the time of the award, 
participants to whom awards had been granted earned 
181,157 stock units with a vested fair value of $6,895. While 
these stock units were eligible for conversion to common 
stock during the fi rst quarter of 2007, most participants 
have elected to defer receipt of the shares. The Company’s 
2003 performance program completed its three-year per-
formance cycle on December 31, 2005. Based on meeting 
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performance goals established at the time of the award, 
participants earned 99,005 stock units with a vested fair 
value of $2,911. No PCSUs were earned in 2004 as the rel-
evant performance targets were not achieved.
 Noncash stock-based compensation associated with 
PCSUs totaled $6,654, $3,198 and $4,254 for 2006, 2005 
and 2004, respectively. The adoption of FAS 123(R) did not 
materially change the expense recognition for PCSUs. As 
of December 31, 2006, there was approximately $7,654 of 
total unrecognized compensation cost related to nonvested 
PCSUs. This cost is expected to be recognized over a 
weighted-average period of eighteen months. 

RESTRICTED STOCK AWARDS
 Since 1994, the Company has from time to time granted 
awards of restricted stock units to certain of the Company’s 
executives. These awards vest over a fi ve-year period with 
one-third vesting on the third, fourth and fi fth anniversa-
ries of the grant. An executive must be actively employed 
by the Company on the vesting date for shares to be 
issued. Participants can elect to defer receipt. However, 
once vested these awards do not expire. As of December 
31, 2006, a total of 363,338 restricted stock units remained 
outstanding, 289,420 of which were vested. Of the vested 
restricted stock units, 3,694 vested during 2006. No 
restricted stock units were granted during 2006. Noncash 
stock-based compensation associated with restricted 
stock grants totaled $419, $1,356 and $890 for 2006, 2005 
and 2004, respectively. The adoption of FAS 123(R) did 
not materially change the expense recognition for the 
Company’s restricted stock awards. As of December 31, 
2006, there was $1,221 of total unrecognized compensa-
tion cost related to nonvested restricted stock units. This 
cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average 
period of three years.
 The activity related to the PCSUs and restricted stock 
units is as follows:
 

      GRANT DATE 
      FAIR VALUE
   NONVESTED VESTED TOTAL PER SHARE

 Outstanding,

  December 31, 2005 436,301 509,268 945,569 $23.48

 Granted 198,560     198,560 $33.37

 Vested (184,851) 184,851 

 Converted  (142,799)  (142,799) $21.43

 Performance

  adjustments/other 110,487 8,042  118,529 $30.00

 Outstanding,

  December 31, 2006 560,497 559,362  1,119,859 $27.54

DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLANS
 Certain offi cers of the Company may elect to defer a 
portion of their compensation in the form of stock units. 
Units are granted as of the day the cash compensation 
would have otherwise been paid using the closing price 
of the Company’s common stock on that day. The units 
immediately vest and earn dividend equivalents. Units are 
distributed in the form of common stock upon retirement 
over a period elected by the employee. Cash compensa-
tion totaling $124 was deferred as stock units during 2006, 
resulting in 3,744 units being granted. There were no con-
versions to common stock during 2006.
 Non-employee directors are required to defer a mini-
mum of 50% of their fees into stock units. Units are 
granted as of the day the cash compensation would 
have otherwise been paid using the closing price of the 
Company’s common stock on that day. The units imme-
diately vest and earn dividend equivalents. Distributions 
begin after retirement from the board over a period elected 
by the director. Since distributions can be made in stock or 
cash, units granted under the director plan are accounted 
for as liability-classifi ed awards. 

11. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS 
RETIREMENT PLANS AND RETIREE HEALTH
AND LIFE INSURANCE PLANS
 The Company provides non-contributory defi ned 
benefi t pension plans for a majority of its employees in 
the United States, and certain of its employees in Mexico 
and Belgium. Effective December 31, 2003, the Company 
froze participation for newly hired salaried and non-union 
hourly U.S. employees in its traditional defi ned benefi t 
pension plan. The Company adopted a defi ned contribu-
tion plan, the Sonoco Investment and Retirement Plan, 
which covers its non-union U.S. employees hired on or 
after January 1, 2004. The Company also sponsors contrib-
utory pension plans covering the majority of its employees 
in the United Kingdom, Canada and the Netherlands. 
 The Company also provides postretirement healthcare 
and life insurance benefi ts to the majority of its retir-
ees and their eligible dependents in the United States 
and Canada. In the fourth quarter of 2005, the Company 
announced changes in eligibility for retiree medical ben-
efi ts effective January 1, 2006, for its U.S. plan. These 
changes included the elimination of a Company subsidy 
toward the cost of retiree medical benefi ts if certain age 
and service criteria were not met, as well as the elimina-
tion of Company-provided prescription drug benefi ts for 
the majority of its current retirees and all future retirees. 
 At December 31, 2006, the Company adopted the 
recognition and disclosure requirements of Financial 
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Accounting Standards No. 158, “Employers’ Accounting 
for Defi ned Benefi t Pension and Other Retirement Plans” 
(FAS 158), which requires balance sheet recognition of 
the funded status of defi ned benefi t plans. As such, the 
December 31, 2006, balance sheet refl ects the funded 
status of these plans. Because FAS 158 prohibits retrospec-
tive application, the December 31, 2006, balance sheet and 
related footnote disclosure are presented in accordance 
with FAS 158 while prior years’ balance sheets and foot-
notes continue to refl ect benefi t plan assets, liabilities and 
disclosure as previously reported.
 The Company uses a December 31 measurement date 
for all its plans with the exception of its pension plan in 
the United Kingdom, which uses a September 30 measure-
ment date.
 The incremental effect of applying FAS 158 on individ-
ual line items in the Company’s 2006 ending balance sheet 
is as follows:

   BEFORE   AFTER 
   APPLICATION  APPLICATION 
   OF FAS 158  ADJUSTMENTS  OF FAS 158

 Prepaid Pension Costs $269,366 $(260,315) $     9,051

 Total Assets $269,366 $(260,315) $     9,051

 Accrued wages and 

  other compensation $     8,917 $   11,245 $    20,162

 Pension and other 

  postretirement benefi ts 185,984 23,448 209,432

 Deferred Income Taxes (25,176) (113,614) (138,790)

 Total Liabilities $  169,725 $    (78,921) $90,804

 Accumulated other 

  comprehensive loss $  (56,220) $(181,396) $ (237,616)

 Total Shareholders’ Equity $  (56,220) $(181,396) $ (237,616)

 Total Liabilities and 

  Shareholders’ Equity $ 113,505 $(260,317) $(146,812)

 The components of net periodic benefi t cost include the 
following:

 Retirement Plans 2006 2005 2004

 Service cost $28,545 $25,994 $22,880

 Interest cost 64,471 60,489 57,953

 Expected return on plan assets (81,332) (72,316) (65,967)

 Amortization of net

  transition obligation 696 575 615

 Amortization of prior service cost 1,615 1,770 1,558

 Amortization of net actuarial loss 28,177 22,705 21,153

 Special termination benefi t cost 659  203 198

 Other 13   

 Net periodic benefi t cost $42,844  $39,420 $38,390

 Retiree Health and

 Life Insurance Plans 2006 2005 2004

 Service cost $2,545 $3,487 $3,608

 Interest cost 5,077 7,097 8,431

 Expected return on plan assets (2,310) (2,881) (3,543)

 Amortization of prior service cost (9,731) (7,679) (6,160)

 Amortization of net actuarial loss 5,721 4,896 5,031

 Effect of curtailment gain   (1,344)  

 Net periodic benefi t cost $1,302 $3,576 $  7,367

 The following tables set forth the Plans’ obligations and 
assets at December 31:

    RETIREE HEALTH AND
   RETIREMENT PLANS LIFE INSURANCE PLANS

   2006 2005 2006 2005

 Change in

  Benefi t Obligation

 Benefi t obligation

  at January 1 $1,196,383 $1,080,525 $102,213 $146,764

 Service cost 28,545 25,994 2,545 3,487

 Interest cost 64,471 60,489 5,077 7,097

 Plan participant

  contributions 2,080 1,557 4,263 4,586

 Plan amendments 1,010 4,082 (2,790) (38,132)

 Actuarial (gain) loss (18,263) 96,078 (7,166) (2,396)

 Benefi ts paid (56,927) (53,255) (12,396) (19,251)

 Impact of foreign

  exchange rates 25,484 (19,869) 106 58

 Special termination

  benefi t cost 659 203

 Other 160 579  

Benefi t obligation

  at December 31 $1,243,602 $1,196,383 $   91,852 $102,213

    

 Change in Plan Assets

 Fair value of plan

  assets at Jan. 1 $     981,442 $    893,384 $  32,705 $  42,347

 Actual return on 

  plan assets 131,118 75,435 4,068 2,270

 Company contributions 13,915 82,163 1,532 2,930

 Plan participant 

  contributions 2,080 1,557 4,263 4,586

 Benefi ts paid (56,927) (53,255) (12,396) (19,251)

 Impact of foreign 

  exchange rates 18,556 (14,093) 

 Expenses paid (5,397) (4,245) (156) (177)

 Other (20) 496  

 Fair value of 

  plan assets

  at December 31 $ 1,084,767 $    981,442 $     30,016  $  32,705
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    RETIREE HEALTH AND
   RETIREMENT PLANS LIFE INSURANCE PLANS

   2006 2005 2006 2005

 Reconciliation of 

  Funded Status,

  December 31    

 Funded status 

  of plan $(158,835) $(214,941) $(61,836) $(69,508)

 Unrecognized net 

  actuarial loss  439,287  57,560

 Unrecognized prior 

  service cost  9,356  (37,917)

 Unrecognized net 

  transition obligation  5,627  

 Net amount 

  recognized  $239,329  $(49,865)

 RETIREMENT PLANS 2005

 Total Recognized Amounts in the Consolidated Balance Sheets

 Prepaid benefi t cost  $281,904

 Accrued benefi t liability  (133,545)

 Intangible asset  6,486

 Accumulated other comprehensive loss  84,484

 Net amount recognized  $239,329

RETIREMENT PLANS 2006

 Total Recognized Amounts in the Consolidated Balance Sheets

 Noncurrent assets  $     9,051

 Current liabilities  (17,066)

 Noncurrent liabilities  (150,820)

 Net pension liability   $(158,835)

 Items not yet recognized as a component of net peri-
odic pension cost that are included in Accumulated Other 
Comprehensive Income as of December 31, 2006, are as 
follows:

    RETIREE HEALTH AND LIFE
   RETIREMENT PLANS INSURANCE PLANS

 Net actuarial loss $349,997  $43,088

 Prior service cost 8,824  (30,977)

 Net transition obligation 5,478 

   $364,299  $12,111

 Of the amounts included in Accumulated Other 
Comprehensive Income as of December 31, 2006, the por-
tions that are expected to be recognized as components of 
net periodic benefi t cost in 2007 are as follows:

    RETIREE HEALTH AND LIFE
   RETIREMENT PLANS INSURANCE PLANS

 Net actuarial loss $19,518  $4,579

 Prior service cost 1,428  (9,730)

 Net transition obligation 478  

   $21,424  $(5,151)

 The accumulated benefi t obligation for all defi ned ben-
efi t plans was $1,143,897 and $1,099,747 at December 31, 
2006 and 2005, respectively. 
 The projected benefi t obligation (PBO), accumulated 
benefi t obligation (ABO) and fair value of plan assets 
for pension plans with accumulated benefi t obliga-
tions in excess of plan assets were, $428,692, $401,560 
and $261,100, respectively, as of December 31, 2006, 
and $375,655, $348,384 and $216,841, respectively, as of 
December 31, 2005. As of December 31, 2006, both the 
ABO and the PBO of the Company’s U.S. qualifi ed pen-
sion plan were fully funded.
 The following table sets forth the Company’s projected 
benefi t payments for the next ten years:

    RETIREE HEALTH AND LIFE
   RETIREMENT PLANS INSURANCE PLANS

 2007 $    55,358 $    9,112

 2008 $    57,092 $   8,525

 2009 $   58,780 $  8,528

 2010 $   61,348 $  8,454

 2011 $   64,194 $  8,608

 2012-2016 $371,688 $41,189

Assumptions
 The following tables set forth the major actuarial 
assumptions used in determining the PBO, ABO and net 
periodic cost.

 Weighted-average
 assumptions used to U.S. HEALTH
 determine benefi t RETIREMENT AND LIFE FOREIGN
 obligations at Dec. 31 PLANS INSURANCE PLANS PLANS

 Discount Rate

  2006 5.83% 5.68% 4.00-5.25%

  2005 5.50% 5.50% 4.00-5.25%

 Rate of Compensation

  Increase

  2006  4.88% 4.69% 1.00-4.00%

  2005  4.80%  4.50% 3.00-5.50%
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 Weighted-average
 assumptions used to  U.S. RETIREE
 determine net periodic  HEALTH AND
 benefi t costs for U.S. RETIREMENT LIFE FOREIGN
 years ended Dec. 31 PLANS INSURANCE PLANS PLANS

 Discount Rate   

  2006 5.50% 5.50% 4.00-5.25%

  2005 5.75%  5.75% 4.25-6.00%

  2004 6.25% 6.25% 5.00-6.50%

 Expected Long-term

  Rate of Return

  2006 8.50% 8.50% 3.75-8.00%

  2005 8.50% 8.50% 3.75-8.00%

  2004 8.50% 8.50% 4.00-8.00%

 Rate of Compensation

  Increase   

  2006 4.80% 4.50% 1.00-4.00%

  2005 4.60% 4.50% 3.00-5.50%

  2004 4.60% 4.50% 1.50-4.00%

 The Company adjusts its discount rates at the end of 
each fi scal year based on yield curves of high-quality debt 
instruments over durations that match the expected ben-
efi t payouts of each plan. The expected long-term rate of 
return assumption is based on the Company’s current and 
expected future portfolio mix by asset class, and expected 
nominal returns of these asset classes. The rate of com-
pensation increase assumption is generally based on salary 
and incentive increases.
 A new mortality table assumption was adopted by the 
Company effective with the measurement of the December 
31, 2005, benefi t obligations, moving from the 1983 GAM 
mortality table to the RP-2000 CH table. This change in 
mortality table increased pension liabilities by approxi-
mately 2%. 

Medical Trends

 The U.S. Retiree Health and Life Insurance Plan makes 
up approximately 99% of the Retiree Health liability. 
Therefore, the following information relates to the U.S. 
plan only.

 HEALTHCARE COST TREND RATE PRE-AGE 65 POST-AGE 65

 2006 11.30% 12.30%

 2005 13.30%  13.30%

 ULTIMATE TREND RATE PRE-AGE 65 POST-AGE 65

 2006 5.0% 6.0%

 2005 6.0% 6.0%

 YEAR AT WHICH THE RATE REACHES
 THE ULTIMATE TREND RATE PRE-AGE 65 POST-AGE 65

 2006 2014 2014

 2005 2014 2014

 Increasing the assumed trend rate for healthcare costs 
by one percentage point would increase the accumulated 
postretirement benefi t obligation (the APBO) and total ser-
vice and interest cost component approximately $2,179 and 
$213, respectively. Decreasing the assumed trend rate for 
healthcare costs by one percentage point would decrease 
the APBO and total service and interest cost component 
approximately $1,995 and $190, respectively. Based on 
amendments to the U.S. plan approved in 1999, which 
became effective in 2003, cost increases borne by the 
Company are limited to the Urban CPI, as defi ned.

Retirement Plan Assets

 The following table sets forth the weighted-average 
asset allocations of the Company’s retirement plans at 
December 31, 2006 and 2005, by asset category.

 ASSET CATEGORY U.S. U.K. CANADA

 Equity securities

  2006 61.8% 72.4% 68.3%

  2005 56.0% 74.0% 62.6%

 Debt securities

  2006 27.7% 21.8% 31.7%

  2005 25.7% 20.7% 37.4%

 Alternative

  2006 10.5% 4.8% 0.0%

  2005 10.2% 4.4% 0.0%

 Cash

  2006 0.0% 1.0% 0.0%

  20051 8.1%  0.9% 0.0%

 Total 

  2006 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

  2005 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

1 A contribution of $63,000 made to the U.S. Defi ned Benefi t Pension 
Plan in late December 2005 is included in cash.

 The Company employs a total-return investment 
approach whereby a mix of equities and fi xed income 
investments are used to maximize the long-term return of 
plan assets for a prudent level of risk. Alternative assets 
such as real estate, private equity and hedge funds may 
be used judiciously to enhance long-term returns while 
improving portfolio diversifi cation. Risk tolerance is 
established through careful consideration of plan liabili-
ties, plan funded status and corporate fi nancial condition. 
Investment risk is measured and monitored on an ongo-
ing basis through quarterly investment portfolio reviews, 
annual liability measurements and periodic asset/liability 
studies. 
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U.S. Defined Benefit Plan

 The equity investments are diversifi ed among U.S. and 
non-U.S. stocks of small and large capitalizations. The cur-
rent target allocation (midpoint) for the investment port-
folio is Equity Securities – 60%, Debt Securities – 30%, 
Alternative – 10% and Cash – 0%.

U.K. Plan

 The equity investments are diversifi ed among U.K. and 
international stocks of small and large capitalizations. The 
current target allocation (midpoint) for the investment 
portfolio is Equity Securities – 72%, Debt Securities – 22%, 
Alternative – 5% and Cash – 1%.
 
Canadian Plan

 The equity investments are diversifi ed among Canadian 
and international stocks of primarily large capitalizations. 
The current target allocation (midpoint) for the investment 
portfolio is Equity Securities – 50%, Debt Securities – 50%, 
Alternative – 0% and Cash – 0%.

Retiree Health and Life Insurance Plan Assets

 The following table sets forth the weighted-average 
asset allocations of the Company’s retiree health and life 
insurance plans at December 31, 2006 and 2005, by asset 
category. As mentioned previously, the U.S. Retiree Health 
and Life Insurance Plan makes up approximately 99% of 
the Retiree Health liability. Therefore, the following infor-
mation relates to the U.S. Plan only. 

 ASSET CATEGORY

 Equity securities

  2006 58.4%

  2005 54.8%

 Debt securities

  2006 32.6%

  2005 30.4%

 Alternative

  2006 6.9%

  2005 6.9%

 Cash

  2006  2.1%

  2005  7.9%

 Total

  2006 100.0%

  2005 100.0%

Contributions

 The Company estimates that it will make minimal vol-
untary contributions to its defi ned benefi t retirement and 
retiree health and life insurance plans in 2007.

Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement 

and Modernization Act of 2003

 In May 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board 
(FASB) issued FASB Staff Position 106-2, ‘Accounting 
and Disclosure Requirements Related to the Medicare 
Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act 
of 2003’ (FSP 106-2), which requires measures of the 
accumulated postretirement benefi t obligation and net 
periodic postretirement benefi t costs to refl ect the effects 
of the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and 
Modernization Act of 2003 (the Act). FSP 106-2 was effec-
tive for interim or annual reporting periods beginning after 
June 15, 2004. The Company adopted and retroactively 
applied FSP 106-2 as of the effective date. In response to 
the Company’s refl ection of the effects of the Act and the 
adoption of FSP 106-2, the accumulated postretirement 
benefi t obligation was reduced by $48,940 and net periodic 
benefi t costs were reduced by $9,080 in 2004. The reduc-
tion in obligation directly related to the subsidy was $3,394 
and $3,942 in 2006 and 2005, respectively. The projected 
subsidy as of December 31, 2006, was substantially less 
than the projected subsidy at the time of adoption because 
of changes the Company made during 2005 to the eligibil-
ity for retiree medical benefi ts. As part of these changes, 
prescription drug benefi ts for Medicare-eligible retirees 
were eliminated for those employees who retired after 1981 
and for all future retirees, thereby signifi cantly reducing 
the projected subsidy. These changes resulted in an overall 
reduction in the accumulated postretirement benefi t obliga-
tion of $38,132 in 2005, which is being amortized over a 
period of 4.6 years. The benefi t of this amortization will 
cease during 2010.
 The following table sets forth the Company’s projected 
subsidy from the government for the next ten years:

 YEAR  PROJECTED SUBSIDY

 2007 $156

 2008 $162

 2009 $166

 2010 $170

 2011 $171

 2012-2016 $927

SONOCO SAVINGS PLAN
 The Company sponsors the Sonoco Savings Plan for its 
U.S. employees, a defi ned contribution retirement plan. In 
accordance with the IRS “Safe Harbor” matching contri-
butions and vesting provisions the plan provides 100% 
Company matching on the fi rst 3% of pretax contributions, 
50% Company matching on the next 2% of pretax contri-
butions and 100% immediate vesting. The plan also pro-
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vides for participant contributions of 1% to 30% of gross 
pay. The Company’s expenses related to the plan for 2006, 
2005 and 2004 were approximately $14,000, $13,000 and 
$11,000, respectively.

SONOCO INVESTMENT AND RETIREMENT PLAN
 The Company also sponsors the Sonoco Investment 
and Retirement Plan, a defi ned contribution pension plan, 
for its salaried and non-union U.S. employees who were 
hired on or after January 1, 2004, the Plan’s effective date. 
The Company makes an annual contribution of 4% of all 
eligible pay plus 4% of eligible pay in excess of the Social 
Security wage base to eligible participant accounts. The fi rst 
such contribution was made in January 2005, in the amount 
of $35, for those participants eligible to participate in the 
plan during 2004, the 2005 expense was $414 and the 2006 
expense was $1,244. Participants are fully vested after fi ve 
years of service or upon reaching age fi fty-fi ve, if earlier. 

12. INCOME TAXES
 The Company provides for income taxes using 

the asset and liability method. Under this method, 

deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined 

based on differences between financial reporting 

requirements and tax laws. Assets and liabilities are 

measured using the enacted tax rates and laws that 

will be in effect when the differences are expected 

to reverse.

 The provision for taxes on income for the years ended 
December 31 consists of the following:

   2006 2005 2004

 Pretax income   

 Domestic $ 210,444 $ 185,089 $ 151,707

 Foreign 64,364 46,037 45,635

  Total pretax income $274,808 $ 231,126 $197,342

 Current      

 Federal $   83,845 $   85,047 $  30,427

 State (2,733)  4,311 199

 Foreign 27,482  19,538 22,922

  Total current $ 108,594 $108,896 $ 53,548

 Deferred  

 Federal $  (12,060) $  (27,110) $   5,971

 State (1,207) 4,116 1,995

 Foreign (1,998) (1,728) (2,656)

  Total deferred $    (15,265) $ (24,722) $   5,310

 Total taxes $      93,329 $   84,174 $ 58,858

 Deferred tax liabilities (assets) are comprised of the fol-
lowing at December 31:

   2006 2005

 Depreciation $109,824 $ 100,623

 Employee benefi ts 2,942 116,090

 Intangibles 45,776  28,486

 Other    7,732

  Gross deferred tax liabilities 158,542 252,931

 Retiree health benefi ts (24,433) (20,431)

 Foreign loss carryforwards (49,984) (39,023)

 Capital loss carryforwards (9,048) (4,448)

 Employee benefi ts (85,996) (78,779)

 Accrued liabilities and other (25,558) (32,365)

  Gross deferred tax assets (195,019) (175,046)

 Valuation allowance on 

  deferred tax assets 56,754 43,022

  Total deferred taxes, net $  20,277 $120,907

 The net increase in the valuation allowance in 2006 
for deferred tax assets of $13,732 is primarily due to an 
increase of net operating and capital losses of foreign sub-
sidiaries for which tax benefi t has not been recognized. 
The net decrease to the deferred tax liability related to 
employee benefi ts is primarily due to the adoption of FAS 
158, “Employers Accounting for Defi ned Benefi t Pension 
and Other Postretirement Plans.”
 Approximately $187,148 of foreign subsidiary loss carry-
forwards remain at December 31, 2006. Their use is limited 
to future taxable earnings of the respective foreign subsid-
iaries. Of these loss carryforwards, approximately $153,012 
have no expiration date. The remaining loss carryforwards 
expire at various dates in the future. Approximately $5,054 
of state loss carryforwards and $3,153 of state credit carry-
forwards remain at December 31, 2006. The state loss and 
credit carryforwards expire at various dates in the future.
 A reconciliation of the U.S. federal statutory tax rate to 
the actual consolidated tax expense is as follows: 

   2006 2005 2004

 Statutory

  tax rate $96,183 35.0% $80,894 35.0% $69,070 35.0%

 State income 

  taxes, net of 

  federal tax

  benefi t 3,182 1.2 1,836 0.8 1,857 0.9

 Repatriation   9,891 4.3  

 Valuation

  allowance 9,175 3.3 5,001 2.2 7,777 3.9

 IRS and state

  examinations

  and settlements   (5,354) (1.9)  (632) (0.3) (9,693) (4.9)

 Other, net (9,857) (3.6) (12,816) (5.6) (10,153) (5.1)

 Total taxes $93,329 34.0% $  84,174 36.4% $58,858 29.8%
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 Undistributed earnings of international subsidiaries 
totaled $131,766 at December 31, 2006. Deferred taxes 
have not been provided on the undistributed earnings, as 
the Company considers these amounts to be indefi nitely 
reinvested to fi nance international growth and expansion. 
If such amounts were remitted, loaned to the Company, or 
the stock in the foreign subsidiaries sold, these earnings 
could become subject to tax.
 During 2006, the Company entered into favorable tax 
agreements with state tax authorities and closed state tax 
examinations for less than originally anticipated, which 
resulted in the reversal of previously accrued taxes of 
$5,354. This was mostly offset by the impact of $4,867 
resulting from restructuring charges for which a tax benefi t 
could not be recognized.
 During 2005, the Company repatriated $124,658 from 
foreign subsidiaries under the provisions of the American 
Jobs Creation Act of 2004 (AJCA). Under this temporary 
incentive, a portion of the repatriated funds qualifi ed 
for an 85% dividends-received deduction. The Company 
recorded U.S. federal and state taxes on the repatriated 
funds of $10,074. The Company also closed state tax exam-
inations resulting in the reversal of previously accrued 
taxes totaling approximately $632. During 2004, IRS and 
state tax examinations were concluded resulting in the 
reversal of previously accrued taxes totaling approximately 
$9,693. 
 The Company’s income tax returns for 2003 through 
2006 are open for examination by the IRS. The Company 
believes that it has made adequate provision for income 
taxes with respect to open years.

13. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
CONTINGENCIES
 The Company is a party to various claims and legal 
proceedings incidental to its business and is subject to a 
variety of environmental and pollution control laws and 
regulations in all jurisdictions in which it operates. As 
is the case with other companies in similar industries, 
the Company faces exposure from actual or potential 
claims and legal proceedings. The Company cannot cur-
rently determine the fi nal outcome of the proceedings 
described below or the ultimate amount of potential losses. 
Pursuant to Statement of Financial Accounting 

Standards No. 5, ‘Accounting for Contingencies’ 

(FAS 5), management records accruals for estimated 

losses at the time that information becomes avail-

able indicating that losses are probable and that 

the amounts can be reasonably estimable. Accrued 

amounts are not discounted. 

ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS
 During the fourth quarter of 2005, the United States 
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) notifi ed U.S. 
Paper Mills Corp. (U.S. Mills), a wholly owned subsid-
iary of the Company, that U.S. Mills and NCR Corporation 
(NCR) would be jointly held responsible to undertake a 
program to remove and dispose of certain PCB-contami-
nated sediments at a particular site on the lower Fox River 
in Wisconsin. U.S. Mills and NCR reached an agreement 
between themselves that each would fund 50% of the 
costs of remediation, which the Company currently esti-
mates to be between $24,000 and $26,000 for the project 
as a whole. Although project implementation began in 
2006, most of the project cost is expected to be incurred in 
2007. Although the agreement reached does not acknowl-
edge responsibility or prevent the other party from seek-
ing reimbursement from any other parties (including each 
other), the Company accrued $12,500 in the fourth quarter 
of 2005 as an estimate of the portion of costs that U.S. 
Mills expects to fund under the current agreement. This 
charge is included in “Selling, general and administrative 
expenses” in the Company’s Consolidated Statements of 
Income. The actual costs associated with cleanup of this 
particular site are dependent upon many factors and it is 
reasonably possible that remediation costs could be higher 
than the current estimate of project costs. The Company 
acquired U.S. Mills in 2001, and the alleged contamination 
predates the acquisition. 
 In June 2006, U.S. Mills became aware of the potential 
for further liability along a larger stretch of the lower Fox 
River, including the bay at Green Bay. Although it has not 
accepted any liability nor entered into any cost sharing 
agreements with interested parties, U.S. Mills is in the early 
stages of reviewing this new information and is discuss-
ing possible remediation scenarios with other potentially 
responsible parties and cannot reasonably estimate the 
amount of its liability, if any, at this time. Accordingly, no 
additional reserve for potential remediation costs has been 
recognized by U.S. Mills at December 31, 2006. Although 
U.S. Mills’ liability could exceed its net worth, Sonoco 
Products Company believes the maximum exposure to its 
fi nancial position is limited to the equity position of U.S. 
Mills which is approximately $90,000 as of December 31, 
2006, excluding any tax benefi ts that may further reduce 
the net charge.
 The Company has been named as a potentially respon-
sible party at several other environmentally contaminated 
sites not owned by the Company. All of the sites are 
also the responsibility of other parties. The Company’s 
liability, if any, is shared with such other parties, but the 
Company’s share has not been fi nally determined in 
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most cases. In some cases, the Company has cost-shar-
ing agreements with other potentially responsible parties 
with respect to a particular site. Such agreements relate 
to the sharing of legal defense costs or cleanup costs, or 
both. The Company has assumed, for purposes of estimat-
ing amounts to be accrued, that the other parties to such 
cost-sharing agreements will perform as agreed. It appears 
that fi nal resolution of some of the sites is years away. 
Accordingly, the ultimate cost to the Company with respect 
to such sites cannot be determined. 
 As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, the Company had 
accrued $15,316 and $16,789, respectively, related to envi-
ronmental contingencies. These accruals include $11,661 
and $12,500 for U.S. Mills at December 31, 2006 and 2005, 
respectively. Actual costs to be incurred for these environ-
mental matters in future periods may vary from current 
estimates because of the inherent uncertainties in evaluat-
ing environmental exposures. 
 Some, or all, of any costs incurred may be covered by 
insurance, or be subject to recoupment from other par-
ties, but no amounts have been recognized in the fi nancial 
statements of the Company for such recovery or recoup-
ment. There can be no assurance, however, that such 
claims for recovery will be successful. 

Income Taxes

 The Company is subject to ongoing examinations by 
tax authorities of the jurisdictions in which it operates. The 
Company regularly assesses the status of these examina-
tions and the potential for adverse outcomes to determine 
the adequacy of the provision for income and other taxes. 
The Company believes that adequate provision has been 
made for tax adjustments that are probable as a result of 
any examination. While the status of the Company’s ongo-
ing tax examinations is constantly changing due to new 
tax law developments, statute expirations and other factors, 
the Company does not expect the outcome of any tax 
examination to have a material effect on its consolidated 
fi nancial position, results of operations or cash fl ows.

COMMITMENTS
 As of December 31, 2006, the Company had long-term 
obligations to purchase electricity and steam, which it 
uses in its production processes. The purchase contracts 
require the Company to make total payments of approxi-
mately $174,098 through 2021, as follows:  $11,933 in 2007; 
$13,164 in 2008; $12,680 in 2009; $12,119 in 2010 and a 
total of $124,202 from 2011 through 2021.

14. SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 
AND EARNINGS PER SHARE
STOCK REPURCHASES
 In 2001, the Company’s Board of Directors approved a 
stock repurchase program authorizing the repurchase of 
up to 5,000,000 shares of the Company’s common stock, 
in addition to approximately 290,000 shares that were 
authorized for repurchase prior to 2001. Therefore, the 
Company had authorizations to repurchase approximately 
5,290,000 shares of common stock as of December 31, 
2005. From February 3, 2006 through April 4, 2006, the 
Company repurchased 2,500,000 shares of Sonoco com-
mon stock for $82,668. On April 19, 2006, the Company’s 
Board of Directors rescinded all previously approved stock 
repurchase programs in conjunction with its approval of 
a new program, which authorizes the repurchase of up 
to 5,000,000 shares of the Company’s common stock. 
On February 7, 2007, the Company’s Board of Directors, 
in anticipation of a planned 1,500,000 share repurchase, 
authorized the reinstatement of those shares to its exist-
ing 5,000,000 authorization. On February 8, 2007, the 
Company completed the repurchase of 1,500,000 shares of 
its common stock for a total cost of $56,700; accordingly, 
5,000,000 shares remain available for repurchase. The 
Company did not repurchase any of its common stock in 
2005.

EARNINGS PER SHARE
 The following table sets forth the computation of basic 
and diluted earnings per share:

   2006 2005 2004

 Numerator:   

  Net income $195,081 $161,877 $151,229

 Denominator: 

  Weighted average

  common shares

  outstanding 100,073,000 99,336,000 98,018,000

  Dilutive effect of 

  stock-based

  compensation 1,461,000 1,082,000 929,000

  Diluted

  outstanding shares 101,534,000 100,418,000 98,947,000

 Net income per

 common share  

  Basic $1.95 $1.63 $1.54

  Diluted $1.92 $1.61 $1.53
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 The Company declared dividends totaling $.95 and $.91 
per share in 2006 and 2005, respectively.
 Certain options to purchase shares of the Company’s 
common stock are not dilutive because the exercise price 
of the option is greater than the market price of the stock 
at the end of the fi scal year. Accordingly, the following 
shares were not included in the computations of diluted 
income per share amounts: 

   2006 2005 2004

Anti-dilutive options 2,000 1,147,000 2,192,000

 These options may become dilutive in future periods if 
the market price of the Company’s common stock appreci-
ates. No adjustments were made to reported net income in 
the computation of earnings per share. 

15. FINANCIAL REPORTING
FOR BUSINESS SEGMENTS 
 The Company identifies its reportable seg-

ments in accordance with Statement of Financial 

Accounting Standards No. 131, ‘Disclosures about 

Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information’ 

(FAS 131), by evaluating the level of detail reviewed 

by the chief operating decision maker, gross profit 

margins, nature of products sold, nature of the 

production processes, type and class of customer, 

methods used to distribute product and nature of 

regulatory environment. 

 The Consumer Packaging segment includes the fol-
lowing products: round and shaped rigid packaging, both 
paper and plastic; printed fl exible packaging; and metal 
and plastic ends and closures. 
 The Tubes and Cores/Paper segment includes the fol-
lowing products and services: high-performance paper and 
composite paperboard tubes and cores; fi ber-based con-
struction tubes and forms; recycled paperboard; linerboard 
and recovered paper.
 The Packaging Services segment provides the following 
products and services: point-of-purchase displays; packag-
ing fulfi llment; contract packing; brand management and 
supply chain management. 
 All Other Sonoco represents the activities and busi-
nesses of the Company’s consolidated subsidiaries that 
do not meet the aggregation criteria outlined in FAS 131, 
and therefore cannot be combined with other operating 
segments into a reportable segment. All Other Sonoco 
includes the following products: wooden, metal and 
composite reels; molded and extruded plastics; custom-
designed protective packaging; and paper amenities such 
as coasters and glass covers.
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 Included in Corporate operating profi ts are restructuring charges, interest expense and interest income.

    TUBES AND 
 YEARS ENDED  CONSUMER  CORES/  PACKAGING  ALL OTHER
 DECEMBER 31 PACKAGING  PAPER  SERVICES  SONOCO  CORPORATE CONSOLIDATED

 Total Revenue

 2006 $1,308,184 $1,614,721 $456,877 $407,411  $ 3,787,193

 2005 1,250,916 1,569,170 456,161 377,968  3,654,215

 2004 1,134,782 1,470,213 321,251 343,813  3,270,059

 Intersegment Sales1

 2006 $      3,430 $    89,163 $        44 $   37,717  $    130,354

 2005 3,465 87,113 284 34,779  125,641

 2004 2,712 81,701 206 30,007  114,626

 Sales to Unaffiliated

    Customers

 2006 $1,304,754 $1,525,558 $456,833 $369,694  $ 3,656,839

 2005 1,247,451 1,482,057 455,877 343,189  3,528,574

 2004 1,132,070 1,388,512 321,045 313,806  3,155,433

 Operating Profits2

 2006 $   109,624 $   148,177 $   39,181 $   49,106 $(71,280) $    274,808

 2005 103,505 107,060 44,813 40,607 (64,859) 231,126

 2004 83,111 113,032 30,266 31,978 (61,045) 197,342

 Identifiable Assets3

 2006 $   836,705 $1,388,453 $326,518 $185,287 $179,715 $ 2,916,678

 2005 738,023 1,258,166 321,742 189,369 474,440 2,981,740

 2004 735,162 1,107,223 320,401 191,975 686,558 3,041,319

 Depreciation, Depletion 

   and Amortization4

 2006 $    55,074 $      85,863 $   11,942 $   11,985  $    164,864

 2005 56,281 83,737 11,994 11,062  163,074

 2004 59,413 85,153 8,236 11,126  163,928

 Capital Expenditures4

 2006 $    48,153 $    63,290 $    3,439 $    8,397  $    123,279

 2005 50,802 62,312 4,913 11,085  129,112

 2004 50,686 59,410 3,279 6,425  119,800

1 Intersegment sales are recorded at a market-related transfer price.
2 Corporate 2006, 2005 and 2004 includes restructuring costs of $(1,912), $(4,617) and $(5,261) respectively, 
associated with the Consumer Packaging segment; $(23,655), $(16,020) and $(14,752), respectively, associated with 
the Tubes and Cores/Paper segment; $(77), $0 and $0, respectively, associated with the Packaging Services segment; 
$(453), $(600) and $(1,018), respectively, associated with All Other Sonoco; and a reversal of previously recorded 
restructuring charges of  $127 in 2006 and $2,049 in 2004 related to Corporate. Interest expense and interest 
income are also shown under Corporate.
3 Identifi able assets are those assets used by each segment in its operations. Corporate assets consist primarily of cash 
and cash equivalents, investments in affi liates, headquarters facilities and prepaid expenses.
4 Depreciation, depletion and amortization, as well as capital expenditures that are incurred at Corporate, are 
allocated to the reportable segments and all other Sonoco. 
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GEOGRAPHIC REGIONS
Sales to unaffi liated customers and long-lived assets by 
geographic region are as follows:

   2006 2005 2004

 Sales to Unaffiliated

  Customers

 United States $2,343,046 $2,291,302 $2,102,229

 Europe 576,096 552,506 453,482

 Canada 369,563 340,532 315,978

 All other 368,134 344,234 283,744

 Total $ 3,656,839 $3,528,574 $  3,155,433

 Long-lived Assets

 United States $   1,217,462 $1,054,430 $ 1,090,187

 Europe 353,841 342,601 277,088

 Canada 165,796 165,243 164,550

 All other 148,519 143,894 130,409

 Total $  1,885,618 $ 1,706,168 $1,662,234

 Sales are attributed to countries/regions based upon the 
plant location from which products are shipped. Long-lived 
assets are comprised of property, plant and equipment, 
goodwill, intangible assets and investment in affi liates (see 
Notes 6 and 7).

16. ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
 The following table summarizes the components of 
accumulated other comprehensive loss, and the changes in 
accumulated comprehensive loss, net of tax as applicable, 
for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005:

   FOREIGN    ACCUMULATED 
   CURRENCY  DEFINED  DERIVATIVE  OTHER
   TRANSLATION  BENEFIT  FINANCIAL  COMPREHENSIVE
   ADJUSTMENTS PLANS INSTRUMENTS LOSS

 Balance at 

  Dec. 31, 2004 $(46,989) $   (58,305) $   2,139 $   (103,155)

 Change 

  during 2005 (12,844) 568 9,042 (3,234)

 Balance at 

  Dec. 31, 2005 (59,833) (57,737) 11,181 (106,389)

 Change 

  during 2006 37,203 (179,879) (13,240) (155,916)

 Balance at 

  Dec. 31, 2006 $(22,630) $(237,616) $ (2,059) $(262,305)

 The 2006 tax effect on the Defi ned Benefi t Plans and 
Derivative Financial Instruments was $112,059 and $7,453, 
respectively. The 2005 tax effect on the Defi ned Benefi t 
Plans and Derivative Financial Instruments was $(142) and 
$(5,078), respectively. 

 The cumulative tax benefi t of the Defi ned Benefi t 
Plans was $138,790 and $26,746 in 2006 and 2005, respec-
tively. Additionally, the cumulative tax effect of Derivative 
Financial Instruments was $1,164 and $(6,289) in 2006 and 
2005, respectively.

17. NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS
 In September 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards 
Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards 
No. 158, “Employers’ Accounting for Defi ned Benefi t 
Pension and Other Postretirement Plans” (FAS 158). FAS 
158 required the Company to recognize the funded status 
of each of its defi ned benefi t plans as an asset or liabil-
ity on the December 31, 2006 balance sheet, the impact 
of which is discussed in Note 11. Under FAS 158 any 
future changes in funded status that are not refl ected in 
net income will be recognized in other comprehensive 
income. FAS 158 does not change how pensions and 
other postretirement benefi ts plans are accounted for and 
reported in the income statement. FAS 158 will require the 
Company to measure the funded status of its plans as of 
year-end beginning with its December 31, 2008 balance 
sheet. Because the Company currently uses December 
31 as the measurement date for most of its plans, includ-
ing its major U.S.-based plans, this change will not have a 
ma terial effect on the Company’s fi nancial statements. 
 In October 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards 
Board issued FASB Staff Position FAS 123(R)-5, 
“Amendment of FASB Staff Position FAS 123(R)-1.”  This 
FASB Staff Position (FSP) excludes from treatment as a 
modifi cation a change to the terms of certain awards if that 
change is made solely to refl ect an equity restructuring and 
certain other conditions are met. If an entity did not apply 
Statement 123(R) in a manner consistent with the provi-
sions of this FSP, then that entity would be required to ret-
rospectively apply the provisions in this FSP to prior peri-
ods when those periods’ fi nancial statements are included 
for comparative purposes with current-period fi nancial 
statements. The provisions of this FASB Staff Position are 
effective for the Company beginning in the fi rst quarter of 
2007. Because Sonoco has not made any changes to the 
terms of previously granted stock-based awards, its imple-
mentation will have no effect on the Company’s fi nancial 
reporting.
 In June 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board 
issued Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty 
in Income Taxes” (FIN 48). This interpretation modifi ed 
the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized 
in accordance with FASB Statement No. 109, “Accounting 
for Income Taxes” (FAS 109). Specifi cally, FIN 48 changes 
the application of FAS 109 by establishing criteria that 
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an individual tax position must meet for any part of the 
benefi t of that position to be recognized in an enterprise’s 
fi nancial statements. Additionally, FIN 48 provides new 
rules for measurement, derecognition, classifi cation, inter-
est and penalties, accounting for income taxes in interim 
periods, as well as disclosure and transition. This interpre-
tation is effective for fi scal years beginning after December 

15, 2006. The cumulative effect of adopting FIN 48 will be 
recorded in retained earnings and the liability for uncer-
tain tax positions. The Company currently expects the 
impact of this adjustment will be an increase in the liability 
for uncertain tax positions of between $2 million and $5 
million. The Company does not believe there will be any 
impact to the Income Statement at the time of adoption.

18. SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA  
 The following table sets forth selected quarterly fi nancial data of the Company:

   FIRST SECOND THIRD FOURTH
 (UNAUDITED) QUARTER QUARTER QUARTER QUARTER

 2006    

 Net sales  $818,769 $  917,010  $  931,522 $  989,538

 Gross profi t         156,176 174,026 181,568 193,270

 Net income1           45,144 49,342 61,091 39,504

 Per common share   

  Net income - basic $        .45 $        .50 $       .61 $       .39

   - diluted .44 .49 .60 .39

  Cash dividends - common .23 .24 .24 .24

    Market price - high 34.75 34.75 34.75 38.71

   - low 28.76 29.45 30.30 33.10

 2005

 Net sales  $814,438 $878,170 $881,058 $954,908

 Gross profi t  148,316 160,744 163,392 188,499

 Net income  2,3  36,989 40,176 45,913 38,799

 Per common share

  Net income - basic $        37 $       .40 $        .46 $         .39

   - diluted .37 .40 .46 .38

  Cash dividends - common .22 .23 .23 .23

  Market price - high 30.24 29.13 28.84 30.64

   - low 25.58 25.46 25.79 25.43

1 Includes restructuring charges of $2,355 ($1,473 after tax), $2,565 ($1,669 after tax), $1,064 ($713 after tax) and 
$19,987 ($17,473 after tax) in the fi rst, second, third and fourth quarter, respectively. The fi rst, second, third and 
fourth quarters also include income of $100, $121, $142 and $53 after tax, respectively, associated with the allocation 
of restructuring charges to the minority interest shareholder of Sonoco-Alcore and Sonoco For Plas do Brazil Ltda.
2 The fourth quarter of 2005 includes $10,074 for additional tax expense associated with the repatriation of $124,658 
in foreign earnings under American Jobs Creation Act and a charge of $12,500 ($7,596 after tax) related to an 
increase in the environmental reserve at a Company subsidiary’s paper operations in Wisconsin.
3 Includes restructuring charges of $5,042 ($3,646 after tax), $9,143 ($6,126 after tax), $4,275 ($2,599 after tax) 
and $2,777 ($1,972 after tax) in the fi rst, second, third and fourth quarter, respectively. The fi rst, second, third and 
fourth quarters also include income of $528, $536, $140 and $56 after tax, respectively, associated with the allocation 
of restructuring charges to the minority interest shareholder of Sonoco-Alcore.
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19. VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

   COLUMN A COLUMN B – ADDITIONS  COLUMN C COLUMN D

   BALANCE AT  CHARGED TO    BALANCE
   BEGINNING  COSTS AND  CHARGED TO   AT END 
   OF YEAR EXPENSES OTHER DEDUCTIONS OF YEAR

 2006     

 Allowance for Doubtful Accounts $ 8,325 $2,263 $1,169  2 $2,774  1 $ 8,983

 LIFO Reserve 11,568 3,034  3     14,602

 Valuation Allowance on

  Deferred Tax Assets    43,022 9,175 4,557  6  56,754

 2005     

 Allowance for Doubtful Accounts $ 8,286 $3,661  2 $ (162)  2 $3,460  1 $ 8,325

 LIFO Reserve 10,701 867  3   11,568

 Valuation Allowance on

  Deferred Tax Assets 43,192 5,001  5  5,171  2,4 43,022

 2004     

 Allowance for Doubtful Accounts $ 8,199 $4,186  2  $4,099  1 $ 8,286

 LIFO Reserve 10,462 239  3   10,701

 Valuation Allowance on

  Deferred Tax Assets 26,941 7,777  4 8,474  2,4  43,192

1 Includes amounts written off.
2 Includes translation adjustments and other insignifi cant adjustments.
3 Includes adjustments based on pricing and inventory levels.
4 Includes utilization and expiration of domestic capital loss carryforwards and increases from foreign net operating 
losses for which no tax benefi t can be realized.
5 Includes utilization of domestic capital loss carryforwards and increases from foreign net operating losses for which 
no tax benefi t can be realized.
6 Includes translation adjustments.
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 YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31 2006 2005 2004 2003  2002 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997 1996

 Operating Results1

 Net sales  $3,656,839 $3,528,574 $3,155,433 $2,758,326 $2,701,419 $2,464,445 $2,570,708 $2,391,666 $2,409,045 $2,702,700 $2,638,414
 Cost of sales and operating expenses 3,310,751 3,232,590 2,897,046 2,549,726 2,455,357 2,204,874 2,250,793 2,085,434 2,149,853 2,382,327 2,344,455
 Other expense, net  2 25,970 21,237 18,982 50,056 10,409 51,175 5,543 (3,500) (100,354) 226,358
 Interest expense 51,952 51,559 47,463 52,399 54,196 52,217 59,604 52,466 54,779 57,194 55,481
 Interest income (6,642) (7,938) (5,400) (2,188) (1,649) (3,800) (3,794) (5,314) (5,916) (4,971) (6,191)
 Income before income taxes 274,808 231,126 197,342 108,333 183,106 159,979 258,562 262,580 310,683 41,792 244,669
 Provision for income taxes  3 93,329 84,174 58,858 37,698 65,075 77,269 107,463 98,333 142,857 51,647 93,837
 Equity in earnings of affi liates/minority interest  4 13,602 14,925 12,745 7,543 7,437 (1,214) 7,702 6,830 6,387 (991) (1,771)
 Income from continuing operations 195,081 161,877 151,229 78,178 125,468 81,496 158,801 171,077 174,213 (10,846) 149,061
 Income from discontinued operations,
  net of income taxes    60,771 9,848 10,113 7,497 16,728 17,783 13,463 21,810
 Income before extraordinary loss 195,081 161,877 151,229 138,949 135,316 91,609 166,298 187,805 191,996 2,617 170,871
 Extraordinary loss, net of income tax benefi t         (11,753)
 Net income  195,081 161,877 151,229 138,949 135,316 91,609 166,298 187,805 180,243 2,617 170,871
 Preferred dividends          (3,061) (7,196)
 Net income available to common shareholders $    195,081 $   161,877 $   151,229 $   138,949 $   135,316 $     91,609 $   166,298 $    187,805 $   180,243 $        (444) $    163,675
 Per common share
  Net income available to common shareholders:
   Basic $            1.95 $        1.63 $       1.54 $        1.44 $        1.40 $           .96 $        1.6 7 $        1.84 $         1.76 $          .00 $        1.64
   Diluted 1.92 1.61 1.53 1.43 1.39 .96 1.66 1.83 1.73 .00 1.58
  Cash dividends – common .95 .91 .87 .84 .83 .80 .79 .75 .704 .641 .586
 Average common shares outstanding:
   Basic 100,073 99,336 98,018 96,819 96,373 95,370 99,725 101,886 102,632 100,981 99,564
   Diluted 101,534 100,418 98,947 97,129 97,178 95,807 99,900 102,780 104,275 107,350 108,487
 Actual common shares outstanding at December 31 100,550 99,988 98,500 96,969 96,380 95,453 94,681 101,134 101,683 105,417 98,850

 Financial Position
 Net working capital $     282,974 $    265,014 $   282,226 $     75,671 $  104,671 $   204,899 $    258,713 $    306,450 $    225,347 $  438,896 $   262,533
 Property, plant and equipment, net 1,019,594 943,951 1,007,295 923,569 975,368 1,008,944 973,470 1,032,503 1,013,843 939,542 995,415
 Total assets  2,916,678 2,981,740 3,041,319 2,520,633 2,436,439 2,352,197 2,212,611 2,297,020 2,082,983 2,159,932 2,365,896
 Long-term debt 712,089 657,075 813,207 473,220 699,346 885,961 812,085 819,540 686,826 696,669 791,026
 Total debt  763,992 781,605 906,961 674,587 833,846 921,810 857,641 904,137 783,632 796,359 893,088
 Shareholders’ equity 1,219,068 1,263,314 1,152,879 1,014,160 867,425 804,122 801,471 901,220 821,592 848,819 920,613
 Current ratio  1.4 1.4 1.4 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.6 1.7 1.5 2.0 1.6
 Total debt to total capital  5 37.5% 35.7% 40.7% 36.4% 44.5% 49.3% 48.5% 47.5% 46.7% 46.1% 47.2%

 Other Data
 Depreciation, depletion and amortization expense  1 $   164,863 $    163,074 $  163,928 $    153,538 $   145,923 $    144,709 $    137,041 $    130,945 $   131,103 $    140,166 $   129,825
 Cash dividends declared – common 94,745 90,126 85,060 81,128 79,768 76,080 78,718 76,434 72,028 64,639 58,480
 Market price per common share (ending) 38.06 29.40 29.65 24.62 22.93 26.58 21.63 22.75 29.63 31.54 23.53
 Return on total equity (including preferred stock)  1,2 15.7% 13.5% 14.2% 15.0% 16.0% 11.5% 19.1% 21.9% 22.0% .3% 18.3%
 Return on net sales1,2 5.3% 4.6% 4.8% 5.0% 5.0% 3.7% 6.5% 7.9% 7.5% .0% 6.2%

1 Operating results for 2000-2002 have been restated to reclassify the High Density Film business, which was sold in 2003, as discontinued operations.
2 2006 data refl ects net charges of $25,970 pretax, $21,330 after tax, for restructuring charges.  2005 data refl ects net charges of $21,237 pretax, 
$14,343 after tax for restructuring cost. 2004 data refl ects net charges of $18,982 pretax, $16,154 after tax, for restructuring costs. 2003 data refl ects net 
charges of $50,056 pretax, $35,329 after tax, for restructuring costs. 2002 data refl ects net charges of $10,409 pretax, $6,663 after tax, for restructuring 
costs. 2001 data refl ects net charges of $51,175 pretax, $49,028 after tax, for the net gain from legal settlements, corporate-owned life insurance (COLI) 
and restructuring costs. 2000 data refl ects net charges of $5,543 pretax, $1,372 after tax, for the net gain on the sales of divested businesses, restruc-
turing costs and executive severance charges. 1999 data refl ects the gain on the sale of divested businesses of $(3,500). 1998 data refl ects the net gain 
on the sale of divested businesses of $(100,354) pretax, or $(41,554) after tax.  1997 data refl ects the asset impairment charges of $226,358 pretax, or 
$174,500 after tax.
3 The provision for income taxes in 2001 and 2000 includes $14,613 and $12,000, respectively, related to COLI.
4 2006, 2005, 2004, 2003 and 2001 data includes restructuring charges of $(416), $(1,260), $(1,778), $1,455 and $6,591, respectively.
5 Debt levels for 1998 through 2000 have been adjusted for cash related to the issuance of restricted-purpose bonds.  

DOLLARS AND SHARES IN THOUSANDS EXCEPT PER SHARE
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The management of Sonoco Products Company is 
responsible for the integrity and objectivity of the fi nan-
cial statements and other fi nancial information included 
in this annual report. These statements have been pre-
pared in conformity with accounting principles gener-
ally accepted in the United States of America.

Sonoco’s accounting systems are supported by internal 
control systems augmented by written policies, inter-
nal audits and the selection and training of qualifi ed 
personnel.

The Board of Directors, through its Audit Committee 
consisting of outside directors, is responsible for review-
ing and monitoring the Company’s fi nancial reporting 
and accounting practices. This committee meets regu-
larly with Sonoco’s management, internal auditors and 
independent auditors to assure each is carrying out its 
responsibilities.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, the Company’s indepen-
dent registered public accounting fi rm, has audited the 
Company’s consolidated fi nancial statements, and their 
report is included herein. 

Charles J. Hupfer
Chief Financial Offi cer

CERTIFICATIONS

The Certifi cation of the Company’s chief executive 
offi cer required to be submitted to the New York Stock 
Exchange pursuant to Section 303A.12(a) of the Listed 
Company Manual for the year ended 2005 was submit-
ted to the New York Stock Exchange.

The Certifi cations of the Company’s principal execu-
tive offi cer and principal fi nancial offi cer required by 
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and 17 
C.F.R. 13a-14(a) have been fi led as Exhibit 31 to the 
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year 
ended December 31, 2006, which report has been fi led 
with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

MANAGEMENT’S REPORT
ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING  
Our management is responsible for establishing and 
maintaining adequate internal control over fi nancial 
reporting, as such term is defi ned in Rule 13a-15(f) 
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Under the 
supervision and with the participation of our manage-
ment, including our principal executive offi cer and 
principal fi nancial offi cer, we conducted an evaluation 
of the effectiveness of our internal control over fi nancial 
reporting based on the framework in Internal Control 
– Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of 
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.  
Based on our evaluation under the framework in 
Internal Control – Integrated Framework, our man-
agement concluded that our internal control over 
fi nancial reporting was effective as of December 31, 
2006. PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, our independent 
registered public accounting fi rm, has audited our 
management’s assessment of the effectiveness of our 
internal control over fi nancial reporting as of December 
31, 2006, as evidenced by their attestation report, which 
appears on page 81 of this report.

Harris E. DeLoach Jr.
Chief Executive Offi cer

Charles J. Hupfer
Chief Financial Offi cer

Barry L. Saunders
Chief Accounting Offi cer
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT Registered Public Accounting Firm

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS AND DIRECTORS 
OF SONOCO PRODUCTS COMPANY:

We have completed integrated audits of Sonoco Products 
Company’s consolidated fi nancial statements and of its inter-
nal control over fi nancial reporting as of December 31, 2006 
in accordance with the standards of the Public Company 
Accounting Oversight Board (United States).  Our opinions, 
based on our audits, are presented below.

Consolidated fi nancial statements
In our opinion, the consolidated fi nancial statements appearing 
on pages 50 through 77 of this report present fairly, in all mate-
rial respects, the fi nancial position of Sonoco Products Company 
and its subsidiaries at December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the 
results of their operations and their cash fl ows for each of the 
three years in the period ended December 31, 2006, in confor-
mity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America.  These fi nancial statements are the responsi-
bility of the Company’s management.  Our responsibility is to 
express an opinion on these fi nancial statements based on our 
audits.  We conducted our audits of these statements in accor-
dance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting 
Oversight Board (United States).  Those standards require that 
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the fi nancial statements are free of material mis-
statement.  An audit of fi nancial statements includes examining, 
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures 
in the fi nancial statements, assessing the accounting principles 
used and signifi cant estimates made by management, and evalu-
ating the overall fi nancial statement presentation.  We believe 
that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As discussed in Notes 10 and 11 to the consolidated fi nan-
cial statements, the Company changed the manner in which 
it accounts for share-based compensation as a result of the 
adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards 
No. 123(R), “Share-Based Payment;” and adopted the provi-
sions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 158, 
“Employers Accounting for Defi ned Benefi t Pension and Other 
Postretirement Plans,” effective December 31, 2006.

Internal control over fi nancial reporting
Also, in our opinion, management’s assessment, included 
in Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial 
Reporting appearing on page 80 of this report, that the Company 
maintained effective internal control over fi nancial reporting as 
of December 31, 2006 based on criteria established in Internal 
Control - Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of 
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO), 
is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on those criteria. 
Furthermore, in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all 
material respects, effective internal control over fi nancial report-

ing as of December 31, 2006, based on criteria established in 
Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the COSO.  
The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining 
effective internal control over fi nancial reporting and for its 
assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over fi nancial 
reporting.  Our responsibility is to express opinions on manage-
ment’s assessment and on the effectiveness of the Company’s 
internal control over fi nancial reporting based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit of internal control over fi nancial report-
ing in accordance with the standards of the Public Company 
Accounting Oversight Board (United States).  Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether effective internal control over fi nan-
cial reporting was maintained in all material respects.  An audit 
of internal control over fi nancial reporting includes obtaining 
an understanding of internal control over fi nancial reporting, 
evaluating management’s assessment, testing and evaluating the 
design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and per-
forming such other procedures as we consider necessary in the 
circumstances.  We believe that our audit provides a reasonable 
basis for our opinions. 

A company’s internal control over fi nancial reporting is a process 
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reli-
ability of fi nancial reporting and the preparation of fi nancial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles.  A company’s internal control 
over fi nancial reporting includes those policies and procedures 
that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable 
detail, accurately and fairly refl ect the transactions and dispo-
sitions of the assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable 
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 
preparation of fi nancial statements in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expendi-
tures of the company are being made only in accordance with 
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and 
(iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely 
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the 
company’s assets that could have a material effect on the fi nan-
cial statements. 

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over fi nancial 
reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.  Also, pro-
jections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are 
subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because 
of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with 
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Charlotte, North Carolina
February 28, 2007



ANNUAL REPORT SONOCO 2006

82           

INVESTOR AND General Information

ADDRESS
Corporate Headquarters and Investor Relations
1 North Second Street 
Hartsville, SC 29550-3305 
Main: +843/383-7000 
Investor Relations: +843/383-7862 
Tollfree: 800/377-2692 
Fax: +843/383-7008 
E-mail: corporate.communications@sonoco.com 

INVESTOR INFORMATION 
Sonoco (NYSE: SON) offers its shareholders a wide range 
of services and several ways to access important Company 
information. 

SONOCO ON THE INTERNET 
Sonoco’s Internet site, www.sonoco.com, provides a variety of 
information about its businesses, products and markets. The 
site also has a robust Media Center for news releases, fi nancial 
presentations, annual reports, proxy statements, various SEC 
fi lings, events, safety performance and more. 

TRANSFER AGENT AND REGISTRAR
The Bank of New York
800/524-4458
+212/815-3700 (Outside the U.S. and Canada)
888/269-5221 (Hearing impaired – TTY Phone)

Address shareholder inquiries to:
The Bank of New York
Investor Services Department
P.O. Box 11258
New York, NY 10286-1258
E-mail: shareowners@bankofny.com

The Bank of New York’s stock transfer Web site:
www.stockbny.com

Send certifi cates for transfer and address changes to:
The Bank of New York
Receive and Deliver Department
P.O. Box 11002
New York, NY 10286-1002
Featuring:
• Automated voice-response system available 24/7
• Service representatives are available during normal 
business hours
• Registered shareholder account access via the Internet 
at www.stockbny.com.

SHAREHOLDER SERVICES
Sonoco – B01
1 North Second Street
Hartsville, SC 29550-3305

ELECTRONIC PAYMENT OF DIVIDENDS 
Shareholders may elect to have their dividends deposited 
directly to their bank accounts at www.stockbny.com or by 
contacting Sonoco Shareholder Services.
 
SHAREHOLDER INVESTMENT PROGRAM 
Allows participants to purchase Sonoco stock and reinvest 
dividends directly without contacting a broker. You do not have 
to be a shareholder to participate. For more information and a 
prospectus, go to www.sonoco.com or www.stockbny.com. 

DUPLICATE ANNUAL REPORTS 
To eliminate duplicate report mailings, mark your proxy card 
or contact Sonoco Shareholder Services (www.stockbny.com). 

SONOCO PUBLICATIONS 
Annual reports, current and past; annual reports on Form 
10-K and the Investor News Quarterly can be found on www.
sonoco.com. They are also available in paper copies without 
charge from: 

Sonoco – A09 
Corporate Communications 
1 North Second Street 
Hartsville, SC 29550-3305 

GENERAL INFORMATION 
ANNUAL MEETING 
The annual meeting of shareholders’ will be held at 11 a.m. 
Eastern time on Wednesday, April 18, at:

The Center Theater 
212 North Fifth Street 
Hartsville, SC 29550-4136 

A live audiocast will be available, with a replay archived for 
six months. Instructions for listening to this audiocast will be 
available on the www.sonoco.com, approximately one week 
prior to the event.  

LEGAL COUNSEL 
Haynsworth Sinkler Boyd, P.A. 
P.O. Box 11889 
Columbia, SC 29211-1889 

INDEPENDENT REGISTERED 
PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM 
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 
Hearst Tower 
214 North Tryon Street, Suite 3600 
Charlotte, NC 28202-2137 

INTELLECTUAL CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 
Sonoco Development, Inc. manages the Company’s intellectual 
assets, including patents, licenses and agreements. Company 
trademarks, domain names and patents are managed by SPC 
Resources, Inc.
The address for both companies is: 

125 West Home Avenue 
Hartsville, SC 29550-4123 

EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 
Sonoco believes that a diverse workforce is required to com-
pete successfully in today’s global marketplace. The Company 
provides equal employment opportunities in its global opera-
tions without regard to race, color, age, gender, religion, 
national origin or physical disability. 

REFERENCES TO WEB SITE ADDRESSES 
References to Sonoco’s Web site address and The Bank of New 
York’s Web site address are for informational purposes only 
and are not intended to, and do not, incorporate those Web 
sites or their contents by reference into this annual report.




